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To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Oxford, Mississippi
Oxford, Mississippi 38655

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Oxford, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did
not audit the financial statements of the City of Oxford Electric Department, which represent
approximately 36 percent and 60 percent, respectively of the assets and revenues of the
Proprietary Fund. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the City of
Oxford Electric Department, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit svidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Management has not adopted a methodology to accumulate the amount of liability related to
customer meter deposits in the Water and Sewer fund of the City. Accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require presentation of all liabilities associated with each
fund in the statement of net position. The liability for customer meter deposits would increase the
liabilities and decrease the net position in the Water and Sewer Fund and Business Type Activitles
of the City. Additionally, the liability related to meter deposits of the Electric Fund is not properly
presented. The liability related to meter deposits in the Electric Fund includes the amount of
deposits for the Electric Fund and the amount for the Water and Sewer Fund. The correction of this
issue in the Electric Fund would decrease the liabilities and increase the net position in the Electric
Fund,

The amount by which the departures would affect the assets, liabilities and net position, of the City's
Electric and Water & Sewer Funds of the Proprietary funds statements has not been determined.

Qualified Opinion:

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion”
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present faitly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Oxford, Mississippi, as of
September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and , where applicable, cash
flows and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 12, the schedule of the City's
proportionate share of the net pension liability and the schedule of the City's contributions on pages
52 - 55 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although nota
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance oh the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Information

The City of Oxford - Electric Department’s financial year ends on June 30, as required by regulatory
bodies, and, therefore, all statements and information relating to the Electric Department in this
report are for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collsctively comprise the City of Oxford, Mississippi's basic financial statements. The combining and
individual fund financial statements, schedules and other supplemental information are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The schedule of expenditures of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by Titie 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Costs Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is
also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements, schedules, other supplementary
information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual
fund financial statements, schedules, other supplementary information and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

Othér Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October
28, 2020 on our consideration of the City of Oxford, Mississippi’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the City of Oxford, Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Franys, Frums  Wilomon *Hﬁéw& 08

FRANKS, FRANKS, WILEMON & HAGOOD, P.A.
Tupelo, Mississippi
October 28, 2020




CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

 Required Supplementary Information for the Year ended September 30, 2019

This section of the City of Oxford’s Financial Report presents our discussion and analysis of the
City's financial performance during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019. Please read it in
conjunction with the City of Oxford financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by

$136,942,768. Of this amount, $0 may be used to meet the City of Oxford ongoing
abligations to citizens and creditors. This compares to the previous year when assets
exceeded liabilities by $130,211,349, of which $0 was available to meet the City's ongoing
obligations.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Oxford's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $64,237,497, an decrease of $10,828,113 in comparison
to the prior year. Approximately 24% of the combined fund balances, $15,485,618, is
considered unassigned and is available for spending at the City of Oxford'’s discretion.

The City's total net position increased by $6,731,419. This increase is considered
reasonable considering the budgeted revenues and expenditures and the amount of grant
funds received for the fiscal year.

The City of Oxford’s total debt is $74,540,354. New debt in the amount of $15,976,028 was
issued in the current fiscal year. Debt in the amount of $6,095,830 was repaid during the
current fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of four parts—management's discussion and analysis (this section), the
basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and an optional section that
presents combining statements for non-major governmental funds. The basic financial statements
Include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City of Oxford.

The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-
term and short-term information about the City of Oxford's overail financial status.

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
City of Oxford’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.

The Governmental Funds statements tell how general government services such as public
safety were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. The City
has four Governmental Fund types: General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt
Service.

Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial information about the
activities the government operates in a similar manner as businesses, and include the
Electric and Water & Sewer funds.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the
statements and provide more detailed data.

4-




CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In addition to these required elements, we inciuded combining statements that provide details about
non-major governmental funds, each of which are added together and presented in single columns
in the financial statements.

Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the City of Oxford’s financial statements, including the
portion of the City of Oxford they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of
this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents
of each of the statements.

Figure A1
Major Features of the City of Oxford’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements

Government-wide
Statements

Governmental
Funds

Proprietary
Funds

Scope Entire  City ~ Govemment | The activities of the City that | Activities the City operates
(except fiduclary funds) and | are nhot proprietary or | similar to private
the City's component units. fiduciary, such as police, | businesses: Electric

fre, —and parks and | Department, Water &
recreation Sewer, and Environmental
Services,

‘| Required - Statement of Net Position; | Balance Sheet; Statementof | Statement of Net Position:
financial Statement of Activities Revenues, Expenditures, | Statement of Revenues,
statements and Changes in Fund Expenses, and Changes in

Balances Net Position; Statement of
Net Cash Fiows

Accounting Accrual accounting Modified accrual Accrual accounting

basis and and economic accounting and and egonomic

measurement { resources focus current financial resources focus

focus resources focus

Type of All assets and Only assets expected All assets and

Assetfliabllity | liabilities, both to be used up and liabiiities, both

information financial and capital, liabilities that come financial and capital,
and short-term and due during the year and short-term and
long-term or soon thereafter, long-term

no capital assets
included

Type of All revenues and Revenues for which All revenues and

inflow/outflow | expenses during cash is received expenses during

information year, regardless of during or soon after year, regardless of
when cash is the end of the year, when cash is
received or paid expenditures when received or paid
goods or services
have been received
and payment is due
during the year or
soon thereafter




CITY OF OXFORD, MiSSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City of Oxford as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net
position includes all of the government's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's ravenues
and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received
of paid. The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the
primary government), but also one blended component unit (Oxford Tourism Council). Financial
information for the component unit is reported with the financial information from the primary
government. The financial statements for the component unit are available from the City Clerk upon
request.

The two government-wide statements report the City of Oxford’s net position and how they have
changed. Net position—the difference between the City of Oxford's assets and liabilities—is one
way to measure the City of Oxford’s financial health, or position.

e Over time, increases or decreases in the City of Oxford’s net position are an indicator of
‘ whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

» To assess the overall health of the City of Oxford, the reader should consider additional
non-financial factors such as changes in the City of Oxford's property tax base.

*  Govemnmental activities —Most of the City of Oxford's basic setvices are included here, such
as the police, fire, public works, and parks and recreation departments, tourism promotion,
transit operation and general administration. Property taxes, sales and use taxes, and state
and federal grants finance most of these activities.

» Business-type activities — The City of Oxford charges fees to customers to help it cover the
costs of certain services it provides. The City of Oxford’s water and sewer systems and
electric department services are included here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City of Oxford’s most
significant funds——not the City as a whole. The “fund” level is where the basic unit of financial
organization and operation within the City of Oxford exists. Funds are accounting tools that are
used to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. They are
the basic budgetary and accounting entities.

e Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

» The Board of Alderman establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes or to show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants.



CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Oxford has two types of funds:

* Governmental funds—most of the City of Oxford’s basic services are included in
governmental funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily
be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available
for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-
term view that help determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance the City of Oxford’'s programs. Because this
information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide
statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds
statement, or on the subsequent page, that explains the relationship {or differences)
between them. The measurement focus of governmental funds is upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balance of financial
resources) rather than upon net income determination. These funds are maintained on a
modified accrual basis of accounting (explained further in the notes to the financial
statements under “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”). The basic financial
statements for governmental funds are the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance. The City of Oxford utilizes four types of
governmental funds: the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds
and Debt Service Funds.

» Proprietary funds—Services for which the City of Oxford charges customers a fee are
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide
statements, provide both long- and short-term financial information. The City has only one
type of proprietary funds—enterprise funds. The City of Oxford's enterprise funds are the
same as its business-type activities yet provide more detail and additional information, such
as cash flows. The measurement focus of proprietary funds is upon determination of net
income, financial position and change in financial position. These funds are maintained on
the accrual basis of accounting. The Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and Statement of Cash Flows are all required
statements.

Government-wide Financial Apalysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. The City of Oxford’s assets exceeded liabilities by $136,942,768 at the close of the most
recent fiscal year.

A large portion, 74%, of the City's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (such as land,
buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens:
however, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

City of Oxford’s Net Position

Table A-1

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

019 2018 2019 018 019 2018
$70,553,827 $70,540,288 $36,182,296 $29,604,554 $106,736,123 $109,234,842
98,184,066 79,946 468 78,079,842 70,282,862 176,263,708 150,229,430
168,737,893 159,486,756 114,261,938 99,977,516 282,999,831 259,464 272
884,861 1,274,041 641,094 850,717 1,625,955 2,124,758
884,861 1,274,041 641,094 850,717 1,625,955 2,124,758
37,772,230 7,383,046 30,989,937 13,666,536 68,762,167 21,049,582
43,327,785 74,296,835 32,137,424 33,040,695 75,465,209 108,237,531
81,100,015 81,679,881 63,127,361 47,607,232 144,227 376 129,287,113
2,191,900 1,483,152 1,163,742 607,416 3,355,642 2,090,568
2,191,900 1,483,152 1,163,742 607,416 3,355,642 2,090,588
55,781,136 35,770,584 45,042 218 47,746,163 101,723,354 83,516,747
44,800,724 60,899,324 1,727,767 2,028,231 45,528 491 82,927,555
{14,251,021) (19,072,144) 2,941,944 2,839,191 {11,308,077)  (16,232,953)
$ 86,330,839 $77,597,764 $50,611,929 $52,613,585 $136,972,768 $ 130,211,349

An additional portion of the City’'s net position represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used.

Unrestricted net position of our business-type activities was $2,941,944 at the end of the current
fiscal year. These resources cannot be used to add to the net position surplus in governmental
activities. The City of Oxford generally can only use this net position to finance the continuing
operations of the business type activities.

Changes in net position. Approximately 14 percent of the City of Oxford’s revenue comes from
property taxes and approximately 12 percent from sales tax, with 35 percent of all revenue coming
from some type of tax, (See Table A-2.) Another 54 percent comes from fees charged for services,
and the balance is from operating and capital grants and contributions, intergovernmental revenue,
investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues.

-8-



CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Table A-2 and the narrative that follows consider the operations of governmental and business-type
activities separately.

Table A-2

Changes in The City of Oxford’s Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2619 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Revenues
Program Revenues:; ,

Charges for Services $ 7,208,123 $6427978 §32,212,301  $39,255508 §46,420514 § 45,683,486

Operating Grants & Contributions 3,271,423 2,973,174 52,775 84,260 3,324 198 3,037,434

Capital Grants & Contributions 753,484 1,123,790 0 0 753,484 1,123,780
General Revenuyes:

Property Taxes 12,164,154 11,109,526 0 0 12,164,154 11,109,526

Sales Tax 10,011,249 9,659,297 0 o 10,011,249 9,659,297

Other Taxes 7,853,494 7457 545 0 0 7,853,494 7,457,545

Intergovernmental Revenuss 3,080,827 3,522,734 0 ¢ 3,080,827 3,522,734

Investment Income 1,146,000 1,386,976 186,883 49,242 1,332,863 1,436,218

Other 724,079 566,038 370,880 417,641 1,094 069 983,679
Tofal Revenues 46,212,833 44,227,058 39,822,919 39,786,651 86,035,752 84,013,709
Expenses
General Government 4,335,881 6,494,534 0 0 4,335,881 8,494,534
Public Safety 15,771,470 15,632,569 o) 0 16,771,470 15,632,569
Public Works 5,072,878 6,035,132 0 0 5,072,787 8,035,132
Tourism Promotion 1,778,076 2,130,408 0 0 1,778,076 2,130,408
Culture & Recreation 6,513,823 7,128,459 0 0 6,513,923 7,128,499
Transit Operation 4,153,434 3,563,867 0 0 4,153,434 3,563,867
Other Functions 399.284 335,088 0 v} 359,284 338,988
Dabt Service 1,338,459 618,879 0 0 1,338,459 618,879
Water & Sewer 0 0 10,909,905 9,292,512 10,909,905 9,292,512
Environmental Services 0 0 5,307,203 4,142,183 5,307,203 4,142,183
Electric 0 0 21,978,618 22,476,074 21,978,618 22,476,074
Capital Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 0 0] 0 0 0
Total Expensos 39,363,405 41,942 878 38,195,726 35,910,769 77,559,131 77,853,645
Excess of Revenue Over Expenses 6,849,428 2,284,182 1,627,193 3,875,882 8,476,621 6,160,084
Transfers 1,802,630 (193,626) (3,628,849) (1,527,250} (1,745,202) (1,720,876)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 8,733,075 2,090,556 (2,001 ,8586) 2,348,632 6,731,419 4,439,188
Net Position--Beginning, as 77,597,76 74,207,777 52,613,586 52,134,385 130,211,349 126,342,162

previously stated 4

Prior Period Adjustment 1,299,431 (1,869,432) (570,001)
Net Position--Beginning, as restated 77,597,746 75,507,208 52,613,585 50,264,953 130,211,342 125,772,161
Net Position--Ending $ 86,330,839 §$ 77,597,764 $50,611,929 $52,613,585 § 136,842,768 $ 130,211,349




CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City's net position by $8,733,075, thereby accounting for
100 percent of the total increase in the net position of the City. Key elements of this increase are
as follows:

The largest funding sources for the City’s governmental activities, as a percent of total revenues,
are property taxes (26%), sales tax (22%), and charges for services (16%).

The largest expense categories for the City's governmental activities are public safety (40%), and
culture and recreation (16%).

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities decreased the City's net position by $2,001,658, thereby accounting for
0 percent of the increase in the City’s net position.

Charges for services are the major revenue categories for the enterprise funds. Total business-type
revenues are comprised of $10,749,609 for water, $4,696,790 for environmental services and
" $23,765,992 for elactric.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds—The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of the City's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund—The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $15,268,350. As a measure of the
general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both the fund balance, assigned and
unassigned, to total fund expenditures. Total fund balance represents 55% of total fund
expenditures. The fund balance of the City's general fund increased by $2,145,911 during the
current fiscal year,

Debt Service Fund—The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $630,170, all of which is
committed for the payment of debt service. The net increase in fund balance during the current year
ir the debt service fund was $1,205,940.

Special Revenue Fund—The special revenue fund is used to account for the programs and
projects primarily funded by grants from the federal and state governments. At the end of the
current fiscal year, the fund balance was $42,918,428, which will be used for future expenditures.

Capital Profects Fund— The capital projects fund accounts for the construction and reconstruction

of general public improvements, excluding projects related to business-type activities, which are
accounted for elsewhere. At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance was $4,376,702.

-10-



CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Proprietary Funds—The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The net position of the proprietary funds
at the end of the current fiscal year totaled $50,611,929. Changes in net position, which totaled
$2,001,656, were as follows: the electric fund increased by $739,259, the environmental services
fund decreased by $760,384 and the water & sewer fund decreased by $1,980,531.

Budgetary Highlights

The City's annual budget, which is prepared on an operating basis, includes estimated revenues
and annual appropriations for the proprietary funds as well as the governmental funds.

The City's 2018 -19 general fund operating budget increased by approximately $3,092,282 during
the current fiscal year. This increase was primarily related to increases in expenditures that are
related to capital projects and personnel expenses. The City's tax millage increased 1.00 mills from
30.22 mills to 31.22 mills from 2018 to 2019.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets—In accordance with GASB 34, the City has recorded depreciation expense
associated with all of its capital assets, including infrastructure. The City’s investment in capital
assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2019, amounted to
$176,263,708, net of accumulated depreciation of $103,950.488. This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery & equipment, infrastructure,
and construction in progress.

Table A-3
City of Oxford’s Capital Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Restated Restated
2019 2018 201 2018 2019 2018

Land $ 6,755,820 $ 6,755,620 $ 1,108,463 $ 1,108,463 § 7,864,083 $ 7,864,083

Plant, Buildings & 37,133,585 35,458,452 109,875,306 105,408,343 147,008,991 140,888,795

Improvements

Machinery & Equipment 19,669,208 18,488,405 11,864,643 10,423,524 31,533,851 32,667,965
'. Infrastructure 50,783,167 47,784,180 0 0 50,783,167 47,784,180

Construction-in-progress 30,989,006 16,235,294 12,035,008 4,153,501 43,024,104 19,388,795

Accumulated Depreciation (47,146,530) {43,775,483) (56,803,058) (52,863,394) (103,950,488) {96,638,877)

Total $ 98,184,066 $ 79,948,468 $ 78,079,642 $ 68,230,437 § 176,263,708  $ 148,176,905

{1




CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Lon_g~term Debt—At year-end, the city had $74,540,354 in bonds and notes outstanding. More
detailed information about the city of Oxford's long-term liabilities is presented in the notes to the
financial statements.

Table A-4
City of Oxford’s Outstanding Debt

Governmental . Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2019 2018 2019 018 2019 018

General Obligation Bonds ~ $ 38,310,000  $ 41,430,000 $25,725,000 $15,085,000 $66,270,000 $ 56,515,000
Special Assessment

Bonds 1,150,000 1,245,000 0 0 1,150,000 1,245 000
General Obligation Notes 2,235,000 067,518 0 0] 2,235,000 067,518
Capital Leases 225,145 0 1,450,881 0 1,676,026 0
Promissory Notes 482,785 533,366 4,961,543 5,309,274 5.444,328 5,932 640

Total $42,402,930 §$44,175884 $32,137,424  $20,484,274 $74,540,354 § 64,660,158

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City considered current year operational expenses and estimated increases based on
economic factors when establishing the fiscal year 2020 budget, The total budgeted appropriations
for the City general fund operations are $38,636,719. This budget reflects an increase of
approximately $2,809,803. Notable increases included capital outlay in multiple departments.

CONTACTING THE CITY OF OXFORD
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the City of Oxford finances and to demonstrate the City's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact the City of Oxford’s Finance Department, 107 Courthouse Square,
Oxford, MS 38655.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPP!
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2019

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Eqguivalents 3 28,371,732 § 23,440,303 51,812,035
Investments 37,324,490 3,242,254 40,566,744
Accounts Receivable, net - 6,490,678 6,490,678
Court Fines Receivable, net 684,658 - 684,658
Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable, net 263,147 - 263,147
Other Recsivables 147,711 - 147,711
Due From Other Funds 43,031 - 43,031
Due From Other Governments 3,715,800 - 3,715,800
‘Prapaid Expenses 3,258 2,082 5,340
Inventories - 1,262,864 1,262 664
Restriced Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted - 5,000 5,000

Investments - Restricted - 1,722,767 1,722,767
Investment in CSA - 16,548 16,548
Capital Assets:

Land 6,755,620 1,108,463 7,864,083

Plant, Buildings and Improvements 37,133,595 109,875,396 147,008,991

Machinery and Equipment 19,669,208 11,864,643 31,533,851

infrastructure 50,783,167 - 50,783,167

Construction in Progress 30,989,008 12,035,008 43,024,104

Accumulated Depreciation (47,146,530) (56,803,958) {103,950,488)

TOTAL ASSETS $ 168,737,893 $ 114,261,938 $ 282,099,831

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Deferred Outflows - Pensions 884,861 641,094 1,625,955

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES § 884,861 $ 641,094 § 1,625,955

13-



CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPP!
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2019

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
LIABILITIES:
Checks Issued in Excess of Cash Deposits $ 100,811 § - % 100,811
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 5,224,683 9,116,026 14,340,709
Accrued Interest Payable - 293,517 293,517
Due to Other Funds 43,031 - 43,031
Long-Term Liabilities, due within one year
Revenue Bonds & Notes Payable 3,774,416 2,672,428 6,346,844
Long-Term Liabilities, due in more than one year
Revenue Bonds & Notes Payable 38,628,514 29,564,998 68,193,510
Customer Deposits - 4,123,518 4,123,518
Net Pension Liability 32,061,357 17,143,049 49,204,406
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,267,203 313,827 1,581,030
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 81100015 $ 63,127,381 $ 144,227,376
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Inflows - Pensions 1,586,075 749,552 2,335,627
Deferred Charge on Refunding of Bonds, net
Accurulated Amortization of $353,348 605,825 414,190 1,020,015
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES $ 2,191,900 § 1,163,742 $ 3,355,642
NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 55,781,136 45,942 218 101,723,354
Restricted for:
Unemployment Benefits 52,171 5,000 57,171
Debt Service 630,170 1,722,767 2,352,937
~ Capital Projects 1,199,955 - 1,199,955
Special Revenue 42,918,428 - 42,918,428
Unrestricted (Deficit) {14,251,021) 2,841,944 {11,309,077)
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 86,330,839 $ 50,611,929 $ 135,942 768

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2019

L ] Major Funds ] ]
Oxford Downtown Other Total
General Reserve & Parking Governmental Governmental
Fund Trust Fund Garage Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Cash on Deposit $ 13,955,514 % - $ 1834000 $ 12582128 $ 28,371,732
Investments 1,080,050 36,067,420 - 207,020 37,324,490
Prepaid Expenses - - - 3,258 3,258
Other Receivables 95,120 - - 52,591 147,711
Due From Other Funds - - - 43,031 43,031
Due From Other Govarnments 2,317,049 - - 1,398,751 3,715,800
TOTAL ASSETS $_ 17,417,733 $_ 36,067,420 $ 1,834,090 $ 14,286,779 3 69,606,022
LIABILITIES:
Checks lssued in Excess of Cash Depesits  § - $ - $ - $ 100,811 % 100,811
Accounis Payable and Accrued Expenses 1,062,505 - 634,135 3,528,043 5,224,583
Due to Other Funds 43,031 - - - 43,031
Due to Other Governments - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,105,536 - 634,135 3,528,854 5,368,525
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable 52,171 - - 3,258 55,428
Committed
Public Safety 49,189 - - - 49,189
Cultural and Recreation 114,291 - - 1,135,394 1,249,685
Debt Service - - - 630,237 630,237
Tourism - - - 55,573 55,573
Restricted ’
Capital Projects . - 1,199,955 3,176,747 4,376,702
Forestry 46,083 - - - 46,983
UMI Uninsured Motorist Funds 3,017 - - - 3,017
IDF Interlock Device Funds 4,311 - - - 4,311
Health Hometown Funds 17,803 - - - 17,603
Transit Operations - - - 507,671 507,671
Toutism - - - 2,753,217 2,753,217
Cultural and Recreation - - - 1,078 1,078
Permanent Fund Principal - 36,067,420 - 1,389,435 37,456,865
Public Safaty . 15,195 - - 788,047 803,242
Economic Development - - - “ -
Assigred
Cemetery 867,410 - - - 667,410
Historic Homes Fund 73,677 - - - 73,677
Unassigned 15,268,350 - - 217,268 15,485,618
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 16,312,187 36,067,420 1,199,955 10,657,925 64,237,497

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 17417733 $_ 36067420 $ 1834000 $ 14,286,779 $ 69,806,022

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2019

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore they
are not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

Deferred revenues for deliquent property taxes deferred in the governmental funds
because they will not be received within sixty days of the Consolidated Government's
year end,

Accrued compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
they are nof reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.

Some fiabilities, including nat pension obligations, are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore are not reported in the funds

Net pension fiability

Deferred outflows and Inflows of resources, related to pensions are applicable to future petiods
and, therefore are not reported in the funds:

Deferred cutflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

Bond issuance costs are reported as expenditures on the Governmental Funds finangial
statements in the year incurred. Howaver, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of issuing
honds is amoritzed overthe life of the related bonds.

This is the amount of unamortized premium remaining.

Accrual of court fine revenues to gualify as financial resources.

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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$ 64,237,497

98,184,066

(42,402,930)

263,147

(1,267,203)

(32,061,357)

884,861
(1,586,075)

(605,825)
684,658

$ 86,330,839



CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019
L | Major Funds [
Oxford Downtown Other Tofal
General Reserve & Parking Governmental Governmental
Fund Trust Fund Garage Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES:; :
General Property Taxes $ B555874 % - $ - $ 3,645,413 § 12,101,287
Sales and Use Taxes 10,011,249 - - - 10,011,240
Special Taxes - - - 4,658,678 4,658,678
Licenses and Parmits 1,246,014 - - - 1,245,914
Franchise Fees 918,278 - - - 919,278
in Lleu - Utility Department 965,000 - - - 985,000
Penalties and Interest 258,861 - - - 258,861
Intergovernmental Revenuss 2,712,989 - - 502,585 3,215,574
Grant Income 942,334 - - 2,020,705 2,963,039
Loeal Matching Funds - - - 1,602,809 1,602,800
Charges for Services 2,803,805 - - 184,832 2,988,637
Fines and Forfeitures 839,076 - - 428,676 1,268,652
Interast income 30,545 - - 5,816 45,381
Net investment Income - 891,099 - - 891,080
Sale of Land and Surplus Equipment - - - - -
Cemetery 64,824 - - - 64,824
Facilily Rental Income 30,000 - - 1,334,608 1,364,608
Sponsorships “ - - 231,337 231,337
Donatigns/Contributions 14,145 - - 398,801 412,046
Miscellaneous Revenues 777.257 - - 16,821 794,078
TOTAL REVENUES 30,182,051 891,099 - 14,931,081 46,004,231
EXPENDITURES:
Current;
General Government 5,768,228 - - - 5,768,228
Public Safety 14,981,907 - - 467,049 15,448 956
Public Works 4,084,514 - 1,081 - 4,085,575
Culture and Recreation 4,377,936 - - 1,434,348 5,812,284
Tourism-Promotion - - - 1,750,587 1,750,567
Transit Operation w - - 3,853,079 3,953,079
Other Functions - - - 419,598 419,598
Capital Projects - - 9,198,385 9,347 950 18,546,335
Debt Service 709,169 - - 4,676,885 5,286,054
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 29,901,754 ~ 9,199,448 21,949,476 61,050,676
EXCESS OF REVENUES :
OVER {(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 280,297 891,099 (9,199,446) {7,018,305) (15,048,445)
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES):
Transfers from {to) Oxford Tourlsm Council - - - (812,377) (812,377)
Transfers from (to) Cther Funds (259,531) (893,901) 694,693 3,154,763 2,696,024
Unrealizad Gain (Loss) from Investments - 209,540 - - 209,540
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt 2,125,146 - - - 2,125,145
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 50URGES (USES) 1,865,614 (684,361) 594,893 2,342,386 4,218,332
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 2,145,811 206,738 (8,504,753) (4,676,009) (10,828,113)
FUND BALANCES-Beginning 14,166,286 35,860,682 9,704,708 15,333,934 75,065,610
FUND BALANCES-Ending $ 16,312,197 § 38067420 $ 1,199955 $ 10,657,926 § 64,237 497

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:
Governmental Funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the Government
Wide Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital assets recorded in the current period.

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the Government-Wide Statement
of Activities, but they do not require the use of current financiat resources. Therefore,

- depreciation expense is not reported as expenditures in Governmental Funds.

Proceeds from the disposition of capital assets Is reported as income in the Governmental
Funds. The gain or loss on the sale of the capital assets and not the gross proceeds are
reported as income in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities.

Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months after the
Government's fiscal year ends, they are not considered "available" revenues in the
governmental funds.

Decrease in accrual of compensated absences.

Revenues in the statemant of activities that do not provide current financial resources
and are not reported as revenues in the funds,

Changes to net pension liability, deferred inflows and deferred outflows are reported in
pension expense in the statement of activities but do not provide or require the use of
current financial resources; therefore, pension expense related to these changes are
hot reported as expenditures in the govenrmental funds.

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to Governmental Funds, but issuing
debt increases long-term liabilities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in Governmental Funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabllities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net
Paosition.

This amount represents the amount of current amortization of premiums.

This amount represents bond proceeds and premliums.

This amount represents long-term debt repayments and issuance costs.

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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$ (10,828,113)

21,940,548

(3,558,694)

(144,256)

62,867

41,364

80,451

(683,542)

49,496
(2,125,145)
3,808,009

$_ 8,733,075



CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Varlance with

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Budget Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over {Under}
REVENUES:
General Property Taxes 9,521,417 $ 9817417 $ 9,658,048 § (69,372)
Sales and Use Taxes 9,212,000 10,112,000 10,109,239 (2,761)
Licenses and Permits 737,400 1,268,900 1,246,914 {11,986)
Franchise Fees 780,000 902,000 902,601 601
in Lieu - Utility Department 965,000 965,000 965,000 -
Penalties and Interest 220,000 258,000 258,861 881
_ Intergovernmental Revenues 1,661,000 1,722,500 1,661,387 {61,113)
Grant Income 1,071,858 1,020,245 862,391 {157,854)
Charges for Services 1,384,175 1,744 175 1,797,442 53,267
Fines and Forfeits 848,200 854,200 839,976 (14,224)
Parking Meter Revenues 725,000 1,036,363 1,036,363 -
Interest Income 19,000 21,800 39,545 17,745
Sale of Land and Surplus Equipment - - - -
Cemetery 50,000 57.000 64,824 7,824
Miscellansous Revehues 214,327 911,422 791,402 {120,020}
TOTAL REVENUES 27,410,377 30,481,022 30,133,980 {347,032)
EXPENDITURES:
Current;
General Government 7,111,703 8,933,850 5,768,228 3,165,622
Public Safety 14,508,868 16,323,246 14,981,907 1,341,339
Public Works 5,633,221 4,931,376 4,064,514 866,862
Culture and Recreation 4,843,687 4,933,637 4,377 936 555,701
Debt Service 637,155 704,807 709,169 (4,362)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 32,734,634 35,826,916 29,001,754 5,925,162
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (5,324,2567) (5,345,894) 232,236 5,578,130
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Transfers (to) from Other Funds 573,045 355,512 (259,531) (615,043)
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt - 3,662,836 2,125,145 (1,437,891)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES {USES) 573,045 3,918,348 1,865,614 (2,052,734)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES AND OTHER
SOURCES OVER FINANCING
AND OTHER USES (4.751,212) $  (1,427,546) $ 2097850 % 3,525,396
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
DOWNTOWN PARKING GARAGE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Variance with

Budget Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES:
Donations/Contributions $ - $ - 3 - $ -
TOTAL REVENUES - - - -
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works 208,000 2,000 1,081 939
Capital Projects 11,685,000 10,998,000 9,108,385 1,799,615
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,893,000 11,000,000 9,199,446 1,800,554
EXCESS OF REVENUES | |
OVER (UNDER)
.EXPENDITURES (11,893,000) (11,000,000) (9,199,448) 1,800,554
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Transfers (to) from Cther Funds (727,222} (727,222) 604,693 1,421,915
Proceeds from Issuance of Debi 41,100,000 - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 10,372,778 (727,222) 694,693 1,421,915
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES AND OTHER
SOURCES OVER FINANCING
AND OTHER USES 5 (1,520,222) % (11,727,222 % (8,504,753) $ 3,222 469

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
September 30, 2019

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES--
PROPRIETARY FUND

WATER &
ELECTRIC SEWER ENVIRONMENTAL
FUND FUND SERVICES TOTAL
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Eguivalents $ 6,363,083 § 15,854,084 § 1,223,128 $§ 23,440,303
Investments 10,474 3,231,780 - 3,242 254
Receivables, net 3,584,086 2,138,268 768,344 8,490,678
Dus from Other Funds - - - -
Due frem Other Governments - - - -
Inventories 659,650 803,014 - 1,262,664
Prepaid Expenses 2,082 - - 2,082
Total Current Assets 10,619,355 21,827,156 1,091,470 34,437,981
Nonhcurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted 5,000 - - 5,000
Investments - Restricted - 1,722,767 - 1,722,767
Investment in CSA 16,548 : - 16,548
Capital Assets:
Land 908,953 199,510 - 1,108,463
Plants, Buildings & Improvements 38,134,823 71,688,366 52,207 100,875,396
Machinery & Equipment 3,141,872 3,872,952 4,849,719 11,864,643
Accumulated Depreciation (12,872,842} (42,018,522) {1,912,504) (56,803,958)
Construction Work In Progress 1,610,197 10,424,801 - 12,035,098
Total Noncurrent Assets 30,944,651 45,889,974 2,989,332 79,823,957
TOTAL ASSETS 41,564,008 67,717,130 4,980,802 114,261,038
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred Qutfiows - Pensions 285,799 218,828 136,667 641,004
TOTAL DEFERRED CUTFLOWS CF RESCGURCES & 285,789 $ 218628 & 136,667 $ 641,004
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

September 30, 2019

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES-

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
WATER &
ELECTRIC SEWER ENVIRONMENTAL
FUND FUND SERVICES TOTAL
LIABILITIES
Current Liabfities:
Accounts Payable and
Accrued Expenses $ 6,176,555 § 2,797,896 § 110,660 $ 9,085,111
Accrued Interest Payable - 287,117 6,400 293,517
Due to Other Funds - - - -
Current Porticn of Long-Term Debt - 2,054,922 517,506 2,672,428
Customer Deposits 4,123 518 - - 4,123,518
Total Current Liabllities 10,300,073 5,139,835 634,566 16,074,574
Long-Term Liabilities;
Other Liabilities 30,915 - - 30,015
Compensated Absences 106,312 122,170 85,345 313,827
Nat Pension Liabiiity 4,256,211 7,929,803 4,957,035 17,143,049
Bonds, Notes, & Loans Payatls, net of current portion - 27,671,621 1,893,375 29,564,908
Total lLong-Term Liabilities 4,393,438 35,723,584 6,035,755 47,052,787
Total Liabilities 14,693,611 40,863,629 7,570,321 63,127,361
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding Bonds, nef - 414,180 - 414,190
Deferred inflows - Pensions 104,900 396,681 247,971 749,552
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLLOWS CF RESOURCES 104,900 810,871 247,971 1,163,742
NET POSITION
Net Investmet in Capital Assets 30,923,103 14,440,664 578,451 45,942 218
Reserved for Unemployment Benefits 5,000 - - 5,000
Raserved for Debt Service - 1,722,767 - 1,722,767
Unrestricted {3,876,709) 10,097,927 (3,279,274) 2,841,944
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 27051394 $ 26261358 % (2,700,823) $ 50,611,828

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION-
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Enced September 30, 2019

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES-
PROPRIETARY FUND

WATER &
ELECTRIC SEWER ENVIRONMENTAL,
FUND FUND SERVICES TOTALS

OPERATING REVENUE:

Charges For Services $ 234785835 § 10,749809 § 4,606,790 § 38,924,934

Other 287,457 - - 287,457
Total Operating Revenue 23,765,992 10,749,609 4,696,790 39,212,391
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Operations 20,182,964 6,933,072 4,124,243 31,241,179

Maintenance 6857 234 175,781 796,181 1,629,186

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 1,093,733 3,148,148 367,734 4,609,615
Total Operating Expenses 21,833,031 10,257,901 5,288,158 37,479,990
Net Operating Incorne (Loss) 1,832,061 491,708 (591,368) 1,732,401
NON-OPERATING INCONE (EXPENSES):

Interest Income 75,894 110,969 - 186,863

Gain (Loss} on Disposal of Fixed Asset (148,056) (8,774) 3,938 (149,892)

Grant income/ Capital Contributions - - 52,775 52,775

Amortization of Debt Expense {5,033) 29,410 - 24377

Rent Revenue - 265,185 - 265,186

Misceliansous Income (Expanse) (10,953) 264,210 2,339 255,598

Interest Expense (39,654) (681.414) (19,045} (740,113)
Total Non-Operating Income (Loss) {127,802 {17,413) 40,007 {105,208}
Ihcome befare Operating Transfers 4,704,259 474,295 (5561,361) 1,627,193
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN (OUT): (865,000) (2,454 826) (209,023) (3,628,849)
Change in Net Position 739,259 (1,980,531) {760,384) (2,001,656)

Tetal Nat Position - Beginning 26,312,135 28,241,889 {1,940,439) 52,613,585

Total Net Paosition - Ending 3 27,051,394 $§ 26,261,358 § (2,700,823) $ 50,611,929

Ses accompanying notes to financial statements,
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

WATER &
ELECTRIC SEWER ENVIRONMENTAL TOTALS
FUND FUND SERVICES
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers $ 23937470 % 10541744 § 4,594,883 § 39,074,097
Payments to Suppliers {19,967,140) 790,991 (1,257,530) (20,433,679)
Payments to Employses {715,548) (2,961,548) (2,199,769) (5,876,881)
Payments for Other Services and Charges - (1,742,994) (832) (1,743,826)
Other Receipts (Payments) - - (226,148) (226,1486)
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Qperating Activities 3,254,784 6,628,195 910,608 10,793,585
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfars In (Ouf) (885,000) (2,454,826) {209,023) (3,628,849)
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Noncapital
Financing Activities (865,000) {2,454,826) {208,023) (3,628,849)
Cash Flows from Capital and Relatad Financing Activities:
Proceeds From Capital Debt - 12,400,000 1,450,881 13,850,881
Purchases of Capital Assets {2,318,966) (10,510,105) (1,565,884) (14,394,955)
Plan{ Removal Cost (359,389) - - (359,389}
Materials Salvaged from Retirements 14,611 - - 14,611
Proceeds From Sale of Capital Assets - - 131,020 131,020
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (425,000) (1,532,731) (240,000} (2,197,731)
Interest Paid on Capital Debt {41,958) {572,183} (21,945) (636,094)
Other Receipts (Payments) - 264,210 2,339 266,549
Net Cash Provided By {Used In) Capital and Related
Financing Activities (3,130,700} 49,181 (243,589) (3,325,108)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Investments (10,474) (104,262) - {114,736)
Proceeds From Sale of Investments 355,848 - - 355,848
Cash Received from Grants - - 52,775 52775
Interast and Dividends 75,894 110,869 - 186,863
Other Recsipts (Payments) (10,953) 265,186 - 254,233
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities 410,315 271,803 52,775 734,983
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and
Cash Equivaients {430,801) 4,494 443 510,769 4,574,811
Cash and Cash Equivalents--Beginning 6,798,684 11,369,651 712,367 18,870,602
Cash and Cash Equivalents--Ending $ 6,368,083 § 15,854,094 $ 1,223,126 §$ 23,445,303

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Gash
Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss) $ 1,832,081 § 491,708 $ (591,368) $ 1,732,401

Adjustments fo Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization Expenss 1,003,733 3,148,148 367,734 4,609,615
Penslon Expanse - Actuarially Determined 138,376 1,027,939 1,242,627 2,409,941
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 33,543 {207,865} (101,907} (276,220)
(Increase) Decrease in Prepald ltems 210 - - 210
{increase} Decrease In Deferred Charges (7,690) 172,736 - 168,046
(Increase) Dacrease in Inventory 160,268 - - 169,268
(Increase} Decrease in Compensated Absences 5,425 52,935 (34,223) 24137
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (149,539) 1,842,594 27,743 1,820,798
Increase (Dacrease) In Accrued Interest Payable 483 - - 483
Increase (Decrease) In Customer Deposits 137,935 - - 137,935
Total Adjustments 1,422,723 6,136,487 1,501,674 9,061,184
Nef Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities $ 3254784 § 6628195 % 910,606 § 10,793,585

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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CITY OF OXFORD, MS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES

The City of Oxford, Mississippi operates under a Mayor - Alderman form of government and provides
_ the following services: public safety (police & fire), public works (street and waste collection), culture

and recreation, building and ground improvements, tourism promotion, transit operation, utilities
(electric, water & sewer, and environmental services), community services, urban redevelopment
and housing, public improvements and general administrative services.

The City has elected to apply all Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements, applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements, and
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The accounting policies of the
City of Oxford conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments.
The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The City's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement
of net position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more
detailed level of financial information.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information on all non-fiduciary
activities of the primary government and its component units. The statement distinguishes between
those activities of the City that are governmental, which are normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, and those that are considered business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. The primary government is reported separately
from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type
activities for the City at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the City’s governmental activities
and for the business-type activities of the City. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient for the goods and services offered
by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program and interest earned on grants that is required to be used to
support a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented
as general revenues of the City, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses
with program revenues identifies the extent to which each business segment or governmental
function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES (continued)

Fund Financial Statements

During the year, the City segregates transactions related to certain City functions or activities in
separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund
financial statements are designed to present financial information of the City at this more detailed
level. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the governmental-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmentai funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported
in separate columns in the fund financial statements. Non-major funds, where applicable, are
aggregated and presented in a single column. Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Government fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible in the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt services expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due.

Significant revenues considered to be susceptible to accrual in addition to general property taxes

include sales tax and various categorical grants. As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has
been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.

rund Types

Governmental Funds

General Fund — The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources of the primary
government except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The majority of current
operations are financed by this fund. Transfers to other funds and agencies are made from this
fund. Monies from other funds may be received unless prohibited by the purpose and object of such
funds. This is a major fund.

Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund was establishad to receive and account for resources

restricted for the payment of interest and principal on general improvement and school bonds, and
notes and capital leases. This is a non-major governmental fund.
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CITY OF OXFORD, M$
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES {continued)

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenus Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific
federal and state grants that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. These are
non-major governmental funds except for the Oxford Reserve and Trust Fund.

Capital Projects Funds — Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources such as
proceeds from the sale of bonds, bond anticipation notes, capital notes, transfers from governmentat
funds, and federal and state grants, all provided for the specific purpose of constructing,
reconstructing or acquiring permanent or semi-permanent capital improvements. Capital
improvements intended for Enterprise Fund use are not included in the Capital Projects Funds.

Permanent Funds — Permanent Funds are used to account for and report resources that are
restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support
the City’s programs.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items, Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues for the proprietary funds are as follows: sale of water for the Water Fund and sale of
electricity for the Electric Fund. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to
use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The Electric Fund — This fund is used to account for the City’s electric distribution system. This fund
is responsible for electric power delivery to the residents of the City of Oxford.

Combined Water and Sewer Fund — This fund is used to account for the City's water treatment and
distribution system. This fund is responsible for water delivery to the residents of the City of Oxford.

Environmental Services Fund —~ This fund is used to account for the cost of providing solid waste
services to the City of Oxford.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

Reporting Entity

In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential component units
(traditionally separate reporting entities) for which the City may be financially accountable and, as
such, should be included within the City's financial statements. The City (the primary government) is
financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the arganization’s governing board and (1) it
is able to impose its will on the organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the City. Organizations for which
the City is not financially accountable are also included when doing so is necessary in order to
prevent the City’s financial statements from being misleading. '

-28-




CITY OF OXFORD, MS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES (continued)

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative
purposes fo conform to the presentation in the current-year financial statsments,

The financial statements are formatted to allow the user to clearly distinguish between the primary
government and its component units. Because of the closeness of their relationship with the primary
government (the City), some component units are blended as though they are part of the primary
government.

Blended Component Units

Oxford Park Commission — Created by a 1950 ordinance of the City. The Commission is composed
of five commissioners appointed by the City's mayor and board of aldermen. Although it is legally
separate from the City, the Commission is reported as if it were part of the primary government
because its primary purpose is to provide recreation activities on behalf of the City.

The Oxford Tourism Council — Established by the Legislature of the State of Mississippi in August
1998 for the promotion of tourism within the City. The Councii is composed of five board members
appointed by the City’s mayor and board of aldermen with one of the five board members being a
current alderman of the City. Although it is legally separate from the City, the Council is reported as if
it were part of the primary government because its primary purpose is to provide tourism activities on
behalf of the City.

Payments Between The City And Component Units

Resource flows between the primary government and blended component units are classified as
interfund transactions in the financial statements.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Mayor and Board of Aldermen generally follow the following proposed budget calendar of the
State Department of Audit in establishing the budgstary data reflected in the financial statements:

(1) The Mayor and Board of Aldermen formulate the bUdget policy at the May board meeting.

(2) Department budget requests are prepared by the appropriate people and submitted by the
July board meeting.

(3) A proposed budget is presented at the August meeting and a notice of public budget
hearings and availability of the budget for inspection is published.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES (continued)

(4) Between August 15th-30th a public hearing is held and the budget is adopted. The
anticipated tax levy is reviewed to determine whether public notice is required on any levy.

(5) Between September 1st-15th the budget must be adopted and the tax levy set.

(8) Between September 1st-30th, in accordance with the City's population, the budget must be
published in a municipal newspaper.

(7) And, between September 15th-30th the budget as adopted should be written up, filed with
the municipal clerk and public notice given of the availability of the budget for inspection.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the activity level. During
the year, several supplementary appropriations were necessary.

(8} Further, budgets are used as management control devices in the General Debt Service and
Propristary Funds, These budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except the Proprietary Fund recognizes all
expenditures for debt as expense and no depreciation expense is recognized.

Budgetary data for the Capital Projects Fund has not been presented in the accompanying
combined financial statements as such funds are budgeted over the life of the respective
project and not on an annual basis.

Unused appropriations for all of the above annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of the
year. The budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized
amounts after appropriate revisions during the year.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the activity level except for
capital outlays, election expenses and emergency expenditures.

Revenue Recognition - Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on
October 1 and are due and payable at that time. All unpaid taxes levied October 1 become
delinquent February 1 of the following year.

Encumbrances

State law does not require that funds be available when goods or services are ordered, only when
paid for. Due to this circumstance, the City does not employ an encumbrance system.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less when acquired are considered to be cash equivalents.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES {continued)

Receivables

Receivables at September 30, 2019, consisted primarily of property and other taxes, accounts
(billings for user charged services including unbilled utility services), intergovernmental receivables
arising from entitlements and shared revenues, and accrued interest on investments.

The accrual amount of court fine receivables on the Statement of Net Position — Government-Wide
has been reduced by $923,324 to reflect the provision for uncollectible fines as determined by
management'’s estimate.

Business Information

The City of Oxford, Mississippi provides electric, water and sewer services to customers located
within the city limits of Oxford, Mississippi as well as a limited number of customers outside the city
limits. Credit is extended to all of these customers for services.

Inventories

Inventories for proprietary fund types are valued at cost. The City does not maintain inventory
records for any other fund types.

Prepaid ltems

Prepaid items, such as prepaid insurance, are not reported for governmental fund types. Thisis
permitted by generally accepted accounting principles.

Compensated Absances

The City’s policy allows employeses to accumulate unused vacation leave with no maximum. Upon
termination, any accumulated vacation leave of up to 30 days will be paid to the employee. Sick
leave will be paid only upon illness while an employee of the City.

Cash and Investments

The City deposits funds in the financial institutions selected by the Board of Alderman in accordance
with state statutes.

The collateral for public entities’ deposits in financial institutions is now held in the name ofthe State
Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by
Section 27-105-5 Miss. Code Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entities are protected through a
collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public
funds must pledge securities as collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial
institution, securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace
the public deposits not covered by the FDIC.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES {continued)

Investments - State statutes, city bond ordinances and city resolutions authorize the City's
investments. The City is authorized, by statute, to invest excess funds in any bonds or other direct
obligations of the United States of America or the State of Mississippi, or of any county, municipality
or school district of this state, when such county, municipal or school district bonds have been
properly approved; or in interest-bearing time certificates of deposit with any financial institution
approved for the deposit of funds.

For reporting purposes, certificates of deposit are classified as investments. Investments are valued
at cost or amortized cost except for investments in the Oxford Reserve and Trust Fund that are
reported at market value.

Fund Balance Classification

The City has implemented GASB Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, the governmental fund financial
statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based
primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for
which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the
governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

» Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact, The City has an obligation to maintain unemployment comp funds intact in lieu of periodic
contributions to the state unemployment insurance program. The City has classified all funds
associated with the unemployment comp fund as nonspendable. The City has $55,429 of
nonspendable fund balance as of September 30, 2019.

* Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the
use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt
covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The City has classified the Forestry
Grant, UMI Uninsured Motorist, BCBS Health Hometown and IDF Interlock Device funds in the
General Fund as restricted. The City has classified all special revenue grant funds as restricted
to the appropriate expenditure category. The City has also classified the 2 % Food and
Beverage Tax, Hotel/Motel Tax, Oxford Transit, Conference Center, Oxford Tourism, and MDJ
Unit Fund as restricted. The City has classified the Activity Center Project Fund, Downtown
Parking Garage Fund, and all other capital projects funds as restricted for capital projects. The
City also considers the balance in the Oxford Municipal Reserve & Trust Fund as restricted due
to a state senate bill.

¢ Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City's Board of Aldermen. These
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of Aldermen removes or
changes the specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that was
employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification also includes contractual
obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically committed for use in
satisfying those contractual requirements. The City has classified the Crime Prevention/OPD
Mounted Unit fund and the Tennis Sponsorships fund in the General Fund, as being committed

- because they were set aside for specific purposes by the Board of Aidermen. The City considers
the balance in the debt service fund as committed based on Board authorization. The City also
considers the Conference Center and Oxford Tourism Council funds as committed to tourism.
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¢ Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be
used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be
expressed by the Board of Aldermen or through the Board of Aldermen delegating this
responsibility to the City's management through the budgetary process. This classification also
includes the remaining positive fund balance for all governmental funds except for the General
Fund. The City has classified the Cemetery Fund and Historic Homes Fund balances as
assigned. The City has $641,087 of assigned fund balance as of September 30, 2019,

¢ Unassigned: This classification inciudes the residual fund balance for the General Fund and all
other amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates used in preparing these
financial statements include those assumed in computing the provision for uncollectible court fines
and the net pension liability. Itis as least reasonably possible that the significant estimate used will
change within the next year.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the City of Oxford's participation in the Pubiic Employees’ Retirement System of
Mississippi (PERS}), and additions to/deductions from the Gity of Oxford’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Public Employees’ Retirement
System of Mississippi (PERS). For this purpose, benefits (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms of the
Public Employees’ Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS).

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes, except motor vehicles, attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1st.
The City bills and collects its own property taxes, except motor vehicle taxes, and also collects taxes
for the Separate School District. Motor vehicle taxes are collected by the County Tax Collector and
remitted to the City. Taxes are levied on October 1st and are due and payable at that time. All
unpaid taxes levied October 1st become delinquent February 1st of the following year. Property tax
revenues are recognized when they become available. Available includes those property tax
receivables expected to be collected within thirty days after year end.
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The millage was aliocated as follows:

2019 2018
School School

City District City District

General Fund 18.57 0.00 20.43 0.00
Park & Recreation 2.00 0.00 2.00 0.00
Library 0.83 0.00 0.86 0.00
City Debt Service
2012 GO Bonds 1.11 0.00 1.23 0.00
2010 GO Bonds 1.01 0.00 1.13 0.00
2009 GO Bonds 0.86 0.00 0.94 0.00
2015 GO Bonds 2.34 .0.00 2,27 0.00
2017A GO Bonds 1.30 6.00 1.32 0.00
2017B GO Bonds 1.60 0.00 0.00 0.00
2018A GO Bonds 6.60 0.00 0.00 0.00
School Bond & Interest 0.00 12.52 0.00 8.65
School Votec Center .00 0.46 0.00 0.48
School Maintenance Fund 0.00 49.56 0.00 _49.54
Total 31.22 62.54 _30.22 . 58.87

NOTE 3 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Litigation

From time to time, the City is a defendant in various litigations arising out of normal business
activities. Although the City carries commercial insurance to protect itself against damage claims, it
is possible that the ultimate resolution of cases may exceed the City’s insured limits. Management,
with the advice of legal counsel, is of the opinion that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial statements.

Federally Assisted Programs — Compliance Audits

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although
the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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The following is a summary of governmental activities capital asset activity as of September 30, 2019;

Primary Government:

Cépital Assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets, not being depraciated
Capital Assets being depreciated
Plant, Buildings & Improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery & Equipment
Total Capital Assets heing depreciated
less: Accumulated Depreciation for;
Plant, Buildings & Improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery & Equipment

Tetal Accumutated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, depraciated, net

Governmental Activities Gapital Asseis

{Restated)
Balance Transfers/ Balance
9/30/18 Additions Disposals 9/30/2019
3 6,756,620 § c % 0 3% 6,765,620
15,235,294 15,806,167 (52,455) 30,989,008
21,990,914 15,806,167 {52,455) 37,744,626
35,458 452 1,875,143 V] 37,133,595
47,784,180 2,098,987 0 50,783,167
18,488,405 1,460,251 (279,448} 19,669,208
101,731,037 6,134,381 {279,448) 107,585,970
(8,792,426) (941,777) 0 (9,734,203)
{22,527,309) (1,076,226) 0 {(23,603,535)
(12,455,748) {1,540,691) 187,647 {13,808,792)
(43,775,483) {(3,558,694) 187,847 (47,146,5630)
57,955 554 2,575,687 (91,801} 60,439,440
$ 79,946468 $ 18,381,854 (144,256} $ 98,184,066

The City has adopted a capitalization threshold of $1,000 for general fixed assets and a threshold of
$5,000 for infrastructure assets. The City has retroactively applied these thresholds to all general fixed

assets in service,
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NOTE 4 - FIXED ASSETS (continued)

A summary of business-type capital asset activity at September 30, 2019 follows:

Capital Assets, not being depreciated:
Land $
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated

Capital Assets being depreciated
Plant, Buildings & Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Total Capital Assets being depreciated

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:
Plant, Buildings & Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, depreciated, net

Business Type Activities Capital Assetfs $

{Restated)
Balance Transfers/ Balance
10/1/2018 Additions Disposals 9/30/2019
1,108,463 0 $ 0 1,108,463
4,153,501 10,394,184 {2,512,587) 12,035,008
5,261,964 10,394,184 {2,612,587) 13,143,561
105,408,343 2,142,187 2,324,866 109,875,396
10,423,524 1,970,689 (529,570) 14,179,560
115,831,867 4,112,876 1,795,296 121,740,039
(46,046,376) (3,966,714) 388,292 (49,624,798)
(6,817,018} (140,441) 392,864 (7,179,160
(52,863,304) (4,107,155) 781,156 (56,803,958)
62,965,473 5,721 2,676,452 65,550,646
68,230,437 10,309,905 $ 63,865 78,604 207

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense
against operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on propristary statement of net position.
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.

Depreciation has been calculated on the fixed assets using the following useful lives:

Plant, Building, and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Furniture and Fixtures

Vehicles

5—40 Years
5—-15 Years
5-20 Years
5-10 Years

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmentai Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture & Recreation
Tourism Promotion
Transit Operation
Other Functions

Total Depreciation Expense — Governmental Activities
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NOTE 4 - FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Business-type Activities:

Electric Department $ 1,205,838
Environmental Services 367,734
Water and Sewer 3,148,148
Total Depreciation Expense — Business-type Activities $ __4107,155

NOTE 6§ - LONG-TERM DEBT

General obligation bonds issued for governmental activity purposes are liquidated by the debt
service fund, whereas, general obligation bonds issued for component unit purposes are liquidated
by the component unit. Revenue bonds and promissory notes issued for business-type activities or
by component units are repaid from those activities or component units.

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation bonds, spécial assessment bonds,
revenue bonds and notes outstanding as of September 30, 2019 are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 3774416 $ 1212042 $ 2,572,428 $ 1,010,738 $ 8,569,624
2021 3,876,414 1,116,991 2,671,153 924,811 8,589,369
2022 3,048,454 1,013,038 2,745,366 846,336 7,653,185
2023 3,135,538 629,372 2,845 078 764,640 7,674,628
2024 3,217,666 843,260 2,675,305 678,189 7,314,420
2025-2029 10,075,442 3,066,980 10,133,094 2,214,247 26,389,763
2030-2034 7,710,000 1,734,919 4,595,000 878,752 15,018,671
2035-2039 6,665,000 476,154 4,000,000 369,000 11,510,154
Total $42402,930 $10.392.757 $32.137424 $_7,786713 $.92,719.824
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A summary of general long-term debt is a follows:

Governmental Activities
General Obligation Bonds &
Notes:

General Obligation Bond
Series 2017A, $7,500,000 with
interest at 3.0% maturing in
2037

General Obligation Bond
Serigs 20178, $7,500,000 with
variable interest at 3.0% to
4,0% maturing in 2038

General Obligation Refunding
Bond Series 2010, $7,085,000
with variable interest at 2.0%
to 3.0% maturing in 2021

Geheral  Obligation Bond
Series 2009, $3,800,000 with
variable Interest at 3.0% to
3.75% maturing In 2024

General  Obligation Bond
Saries 2012, $5,500,000 with
variable interest at 1.625% to
2.25% maturing in 2027

General Obligation  Note
Series 2014, $500,000 with
interest at 1.66% maturing in
2019

General  Obligation  Note
Serigs 2014, $800,000 with
interest at 1.45% maturing in
2019

General  Obligation  Note
Series 2016, $800,000 with
interest at 2.19% maturing in
2021

General  Obligation Note
Serigs 2019, $1,900,000 with
interest at 2.41% maturing in
2024

General Obligation Refunding
Bond Serles 2018A,

$2,700,000 with interest at
2.5% to 3.5% maturing in 2038

Balance

10/01/18 issued
$ 7,230,000 $ 0
7,500,000 0
2,185,000 0
1,825,000 0
3,545,000 0
102,518 0
370,000 0
495,000 4]
0 1,900,000
$ 2,700,000 $ 0
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Retired

280,000

270,000

710,000

270,000

355,000

102,518

370,000

160,000

100,000

Balance
09/30/19

8,950,000 $

7,230,000

1,475,000

1,555,000

3,190,000

335,000

1,900,000

2,600,000

Current
Maturity

290,000

280,000

725,000

285,000

365,000

165,000

380,000

105,000
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DEBT (continued)

General Obligation Refunding
Bond Series 2018C,

$1,050,000 with interest at
3.5% t0 4.0% maturing in 2028

General Obligation Refunding
Bond Series 20188,

$9,950,000 with interest at
3.0% to 4.0% maturing in 2038

General Obligation Refunding
Bond Series 2015, $6,590,000
with variable interest at 2.0%
to 2.6% maturing in 2027

Total General Obligation
Bonds & Notes

Special Assessment Bonds:

Special Assessment Bond
Series 2014, $1,600,000 with
variable interest at 2.250% 1o
2.625% maturing in 2029

Total Special Assessment
Bonds

Capital Leases:

Regions Bank - $1,676,026
{Governmental Activities
$225,145) with interest at
2.21% maturing 2024

Total Capital Leases
Other Notes Payable:
State of Mississippi - CAP

Loan $1,000,000 with Interest
at 2.0% maturing 2028

Total Other Notes Payable

Total Governmental Activities

CITY OF OXFORD, MS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Balance Balance Current

10/01/18 Issued Retired 09/30/19 Maturity
1,050,000 0 90,000 960,000 90,000
9,950,000 0 340,000 9,610,000 355,000
5,445,000 0 705,000 4,740,000 540,000
$ 42397518 § 1,800,000 3,752,518 40,545,000 3,580,000
$ 1,245,000 $ 0] 85,000 1,150,000 100,000
$ 1,245,000 § 0 95,000 1,150,000 100,000
$ 0§ 225145 0 225,145 43,083
$ 0 § 225145 0 225145 43,063
$ 533,366 % 0 50,581 482 785 51,353
5 533,366 0 50,581 482,785 51,353
$ 44175884 $ 2,125,145 3,898,099 42,402,930 3,774,416
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Business-Type Activities

Revenue Bonds:

Water & Sewer Refunding
Bonds Series 2014-
$3,855,000 original issue
with interest at 1.05% to
5.0%, maturing 2027

Genaral Obligation Note
Series 2017-$1,200,000
original issue with interest at
1.86% maturing 2023

Water & Sewer Revenue
Bonds Series 2008-
$3,450,000 original issue
with interest at 3.625% to
4.5%, maturing 2028

Water & Sewer Revenue
Bonds Series 2011-
$8,500,000 original issue
with interest at 3.0% to
4.3%, maturing 2031

Water & Sewer Refunding
Bonds Series 2012-
$2,360,000 original issue
with interest at 1.0% to
2.625%, maturing 2025

Electric System Revenue
Bonds Series 2011-
$3,335,000 original issue
with interest at 2,25% to
3.125%, maturing 2019

Watar & Sewer Revenue
Bonds Series 2019 -
$12,400,000 original issue
with variable interest at 3.0
to 4.0%, maturing 2039

Total Revenue Bonds

CITY OF OXFORD, MS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Balance Balance Current
10/01/18 lssued Retired £9/30/19 Maturity

$ 3,350,000 $ 0 340,600 $ 3,010,000 $ 350,000
1,200,000 0 240,000 960,000 240,000
2,135,000 0 , 170,000 1,985,000 180,000
6,410,000 0 360,000 6,050,000 420,000
1,565,000 0 225,000 1,340,000 230,000
425,000 0 425,000 ] 0

0 12,400,000 0 12,400,000 425,000
$ _ 15085000 % _ 12400000 $ 1,760,000 '$§ 25725000 $ 1,845,000
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NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM
DEBT {continued)

Balance Balance Current
10/01/18 Issued Retired 09/30/18 Maturity
Capital Leases:
Regions Bank - $1,676,026
{Business-Type Activities
$1,450,881) with interest at
2.21%, maturing 2024 5 0 8§ 1,450,881 0 % 1,450,881 277,506
Total Capital Leases 3 0 $  1450,881 $ 0 3% 1,450,881 % 277,508
Other Notes Payable:
State of Mississippi — DEQ
RLF $8,813,809 with interest
at 2.75% maturing 2029 $ 5,300274 % 0 & 437731 $ 4961543 $ 449,922
Total Other Notes Payable $ 5309274 3 0 $_ 437731 $ 4961543 % 448,922
Total Business-Type
Activities $ __ 20,484,274 $ 13,850,881 $ 2,197,731 $ 32137424 $ 2,572,428

NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description- Employees of the City of Oxford are provided a defined benefit pension plan
through the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS), a cost-sharing agent
multiple-employer pension plan. The Public Employees’ Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS)
was created with the purpose to provide pension benefits for all state and public education
employees, sworn officers of the Mississippi Highway Safety Patrol, other public employees whose
employers have elected to participate in the System, and elected members of the State Legislature
and the President of the Senate. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by
writing to Public Employees’ Retirement System of Mississippi, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi
Street, Jackson, MS 39201 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS.

Benefils Provided- For the cost-sharing plan participating members who are vested and retire at or
after age 60 or those retire regardless of age with at least 30 years of creditable service (25 years of
creditable service for empioyees who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011) are entitled,
upon application, to an annual retirement allowance payable monthly for life in an amount equai to
2.00% of their average compensation for each year of creditable service up to and including 30
years (25 years for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011), plus 2.50% for each
additional year of creditable service with an actuarial reduction in the benefit for each year of
creditable service below 30 years or the number of years in age the member is below 65, whichever
is less, Average compensation is the average of the employee’s earnings during the four highest
compensated years of creditable service.
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NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued)

A member may elect a reduced retirement allowance payable for life with the provision that, after
death, a beneficiary receives benefits for life or for a specified number of years. Benefits vest upon
completion of eight years of membership service (four years of membership service for those who
became members of PERS before July 1, 2007). PERS also provides certain death and disabitity
benefits. In the event of death prior to retirement of any member whose spouse and/or children are
not entitied to a retirement allowance, the deceased member's accumulated contributions and
Interest are paid to the designated beneficiary. Retirees and beneficiaries who have been receiving
benefit payments for at least one full fiscal year are eligible to receive an annual Cost-of-Living
Adjustment (COLA). Designed to help offset the effects of inflation, the COLA is equal to 3% of your
annual base benefit for each full fiscal year of retirement up to the year in which you reach age 55
(Retirement Tiers 1 through 3) or age 60 (Retirement Tier 4), plus 3% compounded for each fiscal
year thereafter, beginning with the fiscal year in which you turn age 55.

Employee membership data related to the Plan, as of June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Retirees and Survivors 104,973
Terminated Vested Employees 16,578
inactive Nonvested Members 52,763
Active Members 150,687
Total 325,001
Employee membership data related to the Plan, as of June 30, 2018 was as follows
Retirees and Survivors 104,973
Terminated Vested Employees 16,578
Inactive Nonvested Members 52,763
Active Mernbers 150,687
Total 325,001

Contributions- The contribution requirements of PERS members and employers are established and
may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS members are required to
contribute 9.00% of their annual covered salary and the City of Oxford is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate. At September 30, 2019, the current rate is 17.40% of annual covered
payroll. The contributions are deducted from the employees’ wages or salary and remitted by the
City to PERS on a monthly basis. By law, employer contributions are required to be paid. The
employer's actuarially determined contribution and member contributions are expected to finance the
costs of benefits earned by members during the year, the cost of administration, as well as an
amortized portion of any unfunded liability.

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City of Oxford's total payroll for all employees was
$18,948,248. Total covered payroll was $18,344,589. Covered payroll refers to all compensation
paid by the City (including Oxford Tourism Council and Oxford-Electric Department) to active
employees covered by the Plan.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions- At September 30, 2019, the City of Oxford (including the Oxford
Tourism Council) reported a liability of $44,948,195 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. At
June 30, 2019, the City of Oxford-Electric Department reported a liability of $4,256,211 for its
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NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN {continued)

proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date. The City of Oxford’s proportion of the net pension liability was
based on a projection of the City of Oxford's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. At June 30,
20189, the City of Oxford (including Oxford Tourism Council)’s proportion was 0.255504%. At June
30, 2018, The City of Oxford-Electric’s proportion was 0.025589%.

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City of Oxford (including Oxford Tourism Council)
recognized pension expense of $3,751,264. At September 30, 2019, the City of Oxford (including
Oxford Tourism Council) reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference Between Expected and
Actual Results - Pensions $ 26,589 $ 48,384
City Pension Contributions Subsequent
to the Measurement Date 772,889 0
Changes of Assumptions 440,678 0
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Investment Earnings on Investments 0 491,750
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between
ER Contributions and Proportionate Share
of ER Contributions 0 1,690,593
Total $ 1,240,156 $ 2,230,727

The $772,889 of deferred outflows of resources resulting from the City of Oxford (including Oxford
Tourism Council)’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending September 30, 2018. Other amounts reported
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, Amount
2020 $ (387,659
2021 (1,249,084}
2022 (331,948)
2023 205,211
Total $ (1,763,460)
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For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City of Oxford-Electric Department recognized pension
expense of $409,474. At June 30, 2019, the City of Oxford-Electric' Department reported deferred

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference Between Expected and
Actual Results - Pensions $ 18,659 $ 17,942
City Pension Contributions Subsequent
to the Measurement Date 264,629 0
Changes in Assumptions - 2,511 2,351
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Assets 0 84,607
Total $ 285799 $ 104,900

The $264,629 of deferred outflows of resources resulting from the City of Oxford-Electric
Department’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recoghized as a reduction
of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred
outfiows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension.

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Amount

2018 $ (49,233}
2019 13,776
2020 100,047
2021 19,140
Total $ 83,730

Actuarial Assumptions-The City of Oxford-Electric pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary increases 3.75-19.00%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.75%, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation
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NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions-The City of Oxford pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2019, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all pericds included in the
measureament:

Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases 3.00-18.25%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.75%, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the PubS.H-2010(B) Retiree Table with the following adjustments for
the City of Oxford: For males, 112% of male rates from ages 18 to 75 scaled down to 105% for ages
80 to 119. For females, 85% of the female rates from ages 18 to 65 scaled up to 102% for ages 75
to 119. Mortality rates will be projected generationally using the MP-2018 projection scale to account
for future improvements in life expectancy.

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar Table projected with Scale
BB to 2022, with male rates set forward one year for the City of Oxford-Electric Department,

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2016. The experience report is
dated April 18, 2017,

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected nominal returns, net of pension plan investment expense and the assumed rate of
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, are summarized in the following table: :

2019 2018

Long-Term Long-Term

Expected ' Expected

Target Real Rate Target Real Rate

Asset Class Allocation of Return Allocation of Return
Domestic Equity 27.00% 4.90% 0.00% 0.00%
U.S. Broad 0.00% 0.00% 27.00% 4.60%
International Equity 22.00% 4.75% 18.00% 4.50%
Emerging Markets Equity 0.00% 0.00% 4.00% 4.75%
Global 12.00% 5.00% 12.00% 4.75%
Fixed Income 20.00% 1.50% 18.00% 0.75%
Real Assets 10.00% 4.00% 10.00% 3.50%
Private Equity 8.00% 68.25% 8.00% 5.10%
Emerging Debt 0.00% 2.25% 2.00% 2.25%
Cash 1.00% 0.25% 1.00% 0.00%

Total 100.00% 100.00%
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NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN {continued)

Discount Ratfe- The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate (9.00%) and that employer contributions
will be made at the former employer contribution rate (15.75%) through June 30, 2019 and at the
current contribution rate (17.40%) thereafter. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the City of Oxford’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabifity to Changes in the
Discount Rate-The following presents City of Oxford (including Oxford Tourism Council)'s
proportionate share of the net pension liability using the discount rate of 7.75%, as well as what the
City of Oxford (including Oxford Tourism Council)’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.75%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.75%) than the current rate:

Discount City's Proportionate Share of
Rate Net Pension Liability
1% decrease 6.75% $59,085,959
Current discount rate 7.75% $44,948,195
1% increase 8.75% $33,278,739

The foliowing presents the City of Oxford-Electric Department's proportionate share of the net
pension liability using the discount rate of 7.75%, as well as what the City of Oxford-Electric
Department’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.75%) than
the current rate:

Discount City’s Proportionate Share of
Rate Net Pension Liability
1% decrease 6.75% $6,570,000
Current discount rate 7.75% $4,256,211
1% increase 8.75% $3,676,000

Plan Fiduciary Net Position-Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available
in the separately issued Public Employees’ Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS) financial
report.

NOTE 7 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Oxford is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts: theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
Significant losses are covered by commercial insurance for all major programs of the City except for
certain employment practices liabilities, certain environmental liabilities, worker's compensation
liabilities funded through a public entity risk pool, and catastrophic natural disasters that may
exceed insurance coverage for which the City retains the risk of loss.
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NOTE 7 - RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Risk of loss related to workers compensation for injuries to City employees is covered through the.
Mississippi Municipal Workers’ Compensation Group, a public entity risk pool. The pool was formed
on March 28, 1989, by the Mississippi Nonprofit Corporation Act, pursuant to Section 71-3-75,
Mississippi Code Annotated (1972), to provide public entities within the State of Mississippi workers
compensation and employer's liability coverage. The City pays premiums to the pool for its
workers’ compensation insurance coverage based on total payroll. The participation agreement
provides that the pool will be self-sustaining through member premiums. The risk of loss is remote
for claims exceeding the pool's retention liability. Expenditures and claims are recognized whenitis
probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In
determining claims, events that might create claims, but for which none have been reported, are
considered.

For insured programs there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settlement
amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years. The
City Attorney estimates that the amount of actual or potential claims against the City as of
September 30, 2019, will not materially affect the financial condition of the City. Therefore, no
provisions have been made for estimated claims. There have been no material claims paid by the
City during the current or prior year. '

NOTE 8 - TRANSFERS IN AND OUT

Transfers between the primary government and blended component units do not balance on the
Statement of Activities because the Electric Department and Oxford Tourism Council report
differently from the City. The following is a reconciliation of the difference:

Transfers from Electric Department reported as
In lieu of taxes revenue in

The City General Fund $ (965,000)
Transfers from Special Revenue funds reported as

Revenues by Oxford Tourism Council (812,377)
Transfers to City General Fund reported as

Expenses by Electric Department 32,175

Difference $___(1,745 202)

NOTE ¢ - COMMITMENTS

The electric system has a power contract with the Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) whereby the
electric system purchases all its electric power from TVA and is subject to certain restrictions and
conditions as provided for in the power contract. Such restrictions include, but are not limited to,
prohibitions against furnishing, advancing, lending, pledging or otherwise diverting electric system
funds, revenues or property to other operations of the city and the purchase or payment of, or
providing security for indebtedness on other obligations applicable to such other operations,
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NOTE 10 - THE CITY OF OXFORD MUNICIPAL RESERVE AND TRUST FUND

This fund was established by Senate Bill Number 3128 for a period of twenty years. All proceeds
received by the City from the sale of the Oxford-Lafayette Medicai Center shall be deposited into this
fund. The fund is to be administered, managed, invested and governed by a board of trustees. The
board is to consist of nine members: the mayor; the mayor pro tem; an alderman; and six non
aldermen with terms of one year, two years, three years, four years, five years, and six years. The
alderman will serve for two years. The trustees shall establish a comprehensive investment plan for
the purpose of this act. The comprehensive investment plan shall specify the policies to be utilized
by the board of trustees in its administration of the fund. The board of trustees shall invest the fund
in any of the investments authorized for the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Mississippi
under Section 25-11-121(1), Mississippi Code of 1972.

The fund shall be divided into twoe components, the corpus component and the earnings
component. The corpus component shall consist of the initial deposit of $30,000,000 and
subsequent deposits from the annual income earned. Except, as otherwise provided in the trust
agreement, the corpus shall be inviolate and maintained and used to generate income and shall not
be invaded or used by the Board of Trustees or the Governing Authorities.

The earnings component shall be considered an amount equal to three percent (3%) ofthe amount
of the full fund balance whether or not the corpus component has generated any income in that
fiscal year. All remaining portions of the accrued income earned shall remain in the fund as part of
the corpus component. Funds comprising the earnings component shall be transferred from the
fund to the general fund of the City at the direction of the Clerk and shall be available for
appropriation and spending by the Governing Authorities.

The corpus component can be used upon a three-fourths majority vote of the board of aldermen
and with approval by the mayor, the governing authorities are authorized to withdraw monies from
the corpus component and have the monies disbursed to the City for appropriation and spending, in
the event of the following:

(a) A state of emergency or local emergency has been declared under federal, state, or
local law; or

(b) Overall budgeted collections of the city are more than five percent (5%) below that fiscal
year's budgeted estimates for at least three (3) consecutive calendar months. In this
instance, corpus monies may be withdrawn by the City to meet up to ninety-eight percent
(98%) of projected budget shortfalls.

In the event of withdrawal of any portion of the corpus component by the City, annual
disbursements by the trustees of the sarnings components shall cease and all income shall be
retained by the trustees and repaid to the corpus until such time as the corpus component equals its
full pre withdrawal amount, at which time, disbursement of earning components may continue.,

In addition, upon a unanimous vote of the board of aldermen and with approval by the mayor, the

governing authorities are authorized to withdraw monies from the corpus compoenent and have them
disbursed to the City for appropriation and spending.
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NOTE 10 - THE CITY OF OXFORD MUNICIPAL RESERVE AND TRUST FUND (continued)

The withdrawal by the governing authorities shall be limited in the following manner:

(a) No such vote or withdrawal may occur without the governing authorities first conducting
a full public, open municipal hearing on consideration of the matter for which such

appropriation and spending would be made;

(b) Withdrawal pursuant to this subsection may occur only one time during each four-year

term of the then board of aldermen and mayor;

(c) Withdrawal shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the corpus component of the fund, as

determined by the trustees; and

(d) The withdrawal must be repaid to the fund before a withdrawal under this subsection

could be authorized within a subsequent four-year term.

Custodial Credit Risk:

The investments are held by the Glenmede Trust Company. The Company has presented a
certificate of Liability Insurance for Errors and Omissions of $50,000,000 and a Fidelity Bond of
$30,000,000. The balance of the City of Oxford Municipal Reserve and Trust Fund at September

30, 2019, was $36,067,420.

Concentration of Credit Risk:

The following investments represent five percent or more of the total:

Amount
Glenmede Core Fixed Income-
Bond Funds $ 19,827,464
Vanguard Large Cap Equity
Mutual Funds 8,886,760
Vanguard International
Mutual Funds 3,550,834

FPercent

54.97%
24.64%

9.84%

The investments are reported at fair value. The Oxford Municipal Reserve and Trust Fund does not
participate in an external investment pool. Investments consisted of the following at September 30,

2019:

Market value
Investments: Cost {Level 1)
Bond funds $ 20,011,211 $ 19,827,464
Stock funds 14,411,790 14,190,351
Cash 1,828,538 1,828,538
Accrued income 0 211,087
Short-term investments 0 0
Total investments $ 36,251,539 $ 36,067,420

Level 1: Common stocks, bond funds, stock funds, and short-term investments are valued at the
closing price reported in the active market on which the individual securities or funds are traded.
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NOTE 11 - CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The City of Oxford and its component units have entered in the following commitments:

Expended Remaining
through Commitment
Amount September at September
To Be Paid By Description Authorized 30, 2019 30, 2019
General City Sisk Avenue Extension $ 3,701,007 $ 2,881,213 $ 819,884
General City Activities Center 10,630,413 10,434,386 196,027
General City West Oxford Loop Extension 5,933,452 5,917,494 13,178
General City Downtown Parking Garage 11,526,208 10,569,221 056,987
Water and Highway 314 Sewer
Sewer Improvements 3,584,635 3,004,748 489,887
Water and
Sewer Kroger Water Tank 3,325,760 2,339,320 986,440
Water and
Sewer Lagoon Liner Rehab Project 2 8,829,578 4,194,228 4 635,350
$ 47,531,143 § 39430610 $ 8,097,753
NOTE 12 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES
The following funds have a deficit fund balance at September 30, 2019:
FUND NAME AMOUNT
2004 G.Q. Bonds $ 67
2019 $4M TIF Bonds Project 2,998,987
New Activity Center Project 411,343
Environmental Services Fund 2,700,823
TOTAL $.6.111,220
NOTE 13 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at September 30, 2019, were:
Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
General Fund 3 0 $ 43,031
Special Revenue Funds 43,031 0
$__43,031 $_43.031
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NOTE 14 - FUND BALANGE RECONCILIATION — GENERAL FUND BUDGET BASIS

Mississippi state law requires, for budget purposes, that the general fund record revenues on the
cash basis. Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) would require that the revenues be
accounted for on the modified accrual basis; therefore, the required budgetary basis would not be
considered to be GAAP. Any accruals of revenues included on the "Combined Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes - All Governmental Fund Types" are eliminated for budget
purposes. In the current fiscal year, accrued revenues were $48,0681 more than cash revenues.

NOTE 15 - EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS FOR INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

Any expenditures over appropriations at the legal level of budgetary control for the respective funds
are disclosed in the Combined Statement or Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance —~ Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual for the respective fund. Expenditures over
appropriations at the legal level of budgetary control are as follows:

Budget Actual Overage
General Fund:

Judicial _

Supplies $ 38,000 3 46,553 $ 8,553

Other Services and Charges 42,600 95,666 53,066
Executive

Supplies 7,000 8,676 1,876
Finance

Other Services and Charges 51,300 58,401 7,101
Parking Division

Other Services and Charges 130,938 136,802 5,864
Swimming Poocls-Parks

Supplies 189,500 348,086 158,566
RSVP — Parks and Recreation

Other Services and Charges 49,772 76,474 28,702
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NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 28, 2020, the date on which the
financial statements were available to be issued.

The City issued Tax Increment Financing Bonds in the amount of $4,000,000 at rates varying from
3.25% to 4.25% over a 15-year term with final payment being due September 1, 2034,

The City issued Combined Water and Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 in the
amount of $1,611,000 at a tax-exempt fixed rate of 1.31% per annum with a final maturity date of
February 1, 2027. The purpose of the Bonds is to refund all or a portion of the outstanding
Combined Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2008,

The City issued a CAP loan through the Mississippi Development Authority for the construction of a
new fire station in the Oxford Commons area in an amount not to exceed $1,400,000 at rate of 2%
over a twenty-year term with payments beginning 30 days after the completion of the project. All
loan funds must be expended within two years from the date of the loan.

This City issued a CAP loan through the Mississippi Development Authority for the purchase of a
fire truck in an amount not to exceed $950,000 at a rate of 2% over a ten-year term with payments
beginning 30 days after completion of the project. All loan funds must be disbursed by February 5,
2022, ,
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

PENSION SCHEDULES

(1) Changes in benefit provisions
a. 20186
o Effective July 1, 2016, the interest rate on employee contributions shall be
calculated based on the money market rate as published by the Wall Street Journal
on December 31 of each preceding year with a minimum rate of one percent and a
maximum rate of five percent.

{2) Changes in assumptions
a. 2019
* The expectation of retired life mortality was changed to the PubS.H-2010(B) Retiree
Table with the following adjustments:
e Formales, 112% of male rates from ages 18 to 75 scaled down to 105% for
ages 80 to 119. )
¢ Forfemales, 85% of the female rates from ages 18 to 65 scaled up to 102%
for ages 75 to 119,
+ Projection scale MP-2018 will be used to project future improvements in life
expectancy generationally.
» The expectation of disabled mortality was changed to PubT.H-2010 Disabled
Retiree Table for disabled retirees with the following adjustments:
» Formales, 137% of male rates at all ages.
+ Forfemales, 115% of female rates at all ages.
« Projection scale MP-2018 will be used to project future improvements in life
expectancy generationally.
The price inflation assumption was reduced from 3.00% to 2.75%.
The wage inflation assumption was reduced from 3.25% to 3.00%.
¢ Withdrawal rates, pre-retirement mortality rates, and service retirement rates were
also adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience.
* The percentage of active member disabilities assumed to be in the line of duty was
increased from 7% to 9%.
b, 2017
» The expectation of retired life mortality was changed to the RP-2014 Healthy
Annuitant Blue Collar Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2022. Small
adjustments were also made to the Mortality Table for disable lives.
* The wage inflation assumption was reduced from 3.75% to 3.25%.
+ Withdrawal rates, pre-retirement mortality rates, disability rates and service
retirement rates were also adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience.
» The percentage of active member disabilities assumed to be in the line of duty was
increased from 6% to 7%.
c. 2018
* The assumed rate of interest credited to employee contributions was changed from
3.50% to 2.00%.
d. 2015
» The expectation of retired life mortality was changed to the RP-2014 Healthy
Annuitant Blue Collar Table projected to 2016 using Scale BB rather that the RP-
2000 Mortality Table, which was used prior to 2015.
+ The expectation of disabled mortality was changed to the RP-2014 Disable Retiree
Table, rather than the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table, which was used prior to
2015.
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» Withdrawal rates, pre-retirement mortality rates, disability rates and service
retirement rates were also adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience.,

s Assumed rates of salary increase were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and
anticipated experience.

» The price inflation and investment rate of return assumptions were changed from
3.50% to 3.00% and 8.00% to 7.75%, respectively.

(3) Method and assumptions used in calcufations of actuarially determined contributions. The

(4)

actuarially determined contribution rates in the schedule of employer contributions are calculated as
of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported (June 30,
2016 valuation for the June 30, 2018 fiscal year end). The following actuarial methods and
assumptions were used to determine the most recent contribution rate reported in that schedule:

¢ Actuarial cost method Entry age

+ Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, open

* Remaining amortization period 36.6 years

¢ Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market

s Price Inflation 3.00 percent

» Salary increase 3.75 percent to 19.00 percent, including inflation
« Investment rate of return 7.75 percent, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation

PENSION SCHEDULES {continued)

The comparative information presented on the Schedule of the City's Contributions does not include
information for years prior to 2014 because GASB 68 was implemented in the 2015 fiscal year.
Information for the 2014 year was included because it was necessary to record the prior period
adjustment in the implementation of GASB 68.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPP|
CONMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2019

Total
Non-Major Non-Mafor Non-Major Non-Major
Debt Spegial Capital Governmental
Service Revenue Projects Funds
ASSETS:
Cash | $ 607,702 § 5482130 $ 649229 $ 12582128
Investments - 207,020 - 207,020
Prepaid Expenses - 3,258 - 3,258
Receivables 24,968 27,823 - 52,591
Due From Other Funds - 43,031 - 43,031
Due From Other Government Units - 1,388,751 - 1,398,751
TOTAL ASSETS $ 632670 $ 7,161,813 $ 6,492296 $ 14,288,779
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
LIABITILIES:
Checks Issued in Excess of Deposits 3 2500 $ 98,311 § - $ 100,811
Accounts Payable - 212,494 3,315,549 3,528,043
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,500 310,805 3,315,549 3,628,854
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Committed 630,237 1,190,967 - 1,821,204
Restricted
Capital Projects - - 3,176,747 3,176,747
Transit Operations - 507,671 - 507,671
Tourism - 2,753,217 - 2,763,217
Cultural and Recreational - 1,078 - 1,078
Permanent Fund Principal - 1,389,435 - 1,389,435
Public Safety - 788,047 - 788,047
Economic Development - - - -
Nonspendable - 3,258 - 3,258
Unassigned (67) 217,335 - 217,268
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 630,170 £,851,008 3,176,747 10,657,925
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 3 632670 $§ 7,161,813 $§ 6492296 $ 14,288,779

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Total
Non-Major Non-Major Non-Major Non-Major
Debt Special Capital Governmental
Service Revenue Projects Funds
REVENUES:
General Property Taxes $ 3545413 §% - $ - $§ 3,545,413
Special Taxes - 4,658,678 - 4,658,678
intergovernmentai Revenues - 502,585 - 502,585
Federal & State Grants - 2,020,705 - 2,020,705
Local Matching Funds - 1,602,809 - 1,602,809
Charges for Services - 184,832 - 184,832
Fines & Forfeitures - 428,676 - 428,676
Interest 573 5,243 - 5,816
Facility Rental Income - 1,334,608 - 1,334,608
Sponsorships - 231,337 - 231,337
Donations/Cantributions - - 398,801 398,801
Miscellaneous - 12,917 3,904 16,821
TOTAL REVENUES 3,645,986 10,982,390 402,705 14,931,081
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Tourism Promation - 1,750,567 - 1,750,567
Fublic Safety - 467,049 - 467,049
RSVP County Transit - 73,629 - 73,629
Public Works - 345,969 - 345,969
Culture and Recreation - 1,418,408 15,942 1,434,348
Transit Oparation - 3,853,079 - 3,053,079
Capital Projects - 308,309 9,039,641 9,347,950
Debt Service 4,576,885 - - 4,576,885
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,576,885 8,317,008 9,055,583 21,949 475
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,030,899) 2,665,382 (8,652,878) (7,018,3295)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt - - - -
Transfers from ({to) Oxford Tourism Council - (812,377 - (812,377}
Transfers from (to) Other Funds 1,205,940 {807,827) 2,756,850 3,154,763
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOQURCES (USES) 1,205,940 {1,620,204) 2,758,650 2,342,386
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 175,041 1,045,178 (5,896,228) (4,676,000)
FUND BALANCES - Beginning 455,129 5,805,830 0,072,875 15,333,934
FUND BALANCES - Ending $ 630,170 $ 6,851,008 $ 3,176,747 $ 10,657,925

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
BALANCE SHEET - GENERAL FUND
September 30, 2019

TOTALS
2019
ASSETS:
Cash $ 13,955,514
Investments 1,050,050
Due From Other Governments 2,317,049
Cther Receivables 95,120
TOTAL ASSETS $ 17,417,733
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 1,062,505
Due to Other Funds 43,031
Due to Other Governments -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,105,536
FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable 52171
Committed
Public Safety 49,189
Culture & Recreation 114,291
Restricted
Forestry 46,983
UMI Uninsured Motorist Funds 3,017
IDF Interlock Device Funds 4,311
Healthy Homestown Funds 17,603
Public Safety 16,195
Assigned
Cemetary 667,410
Historic Homes Fund 73,877
Unassigned 15,268,350
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 16,312,197

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

TOTALS
2019
REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Real & Personal 8,555,874
Penalties and Interest 258,861
Licenses and Permits 1,245,914
- State of Mississippi:
Sales Tax 10,011,249
Municipal Aid 9,433
Fire Protection 111,845
Utility Tax 18,592
ABC Licenses 189,975
Homestead Reimbursement 131,171
Law Enforcement Assistance -
In Lieu of Taxes 262,520
Lafayette County:
Pro Rata Tax 1,048,018
I Lieu - Other:
Utility Department 865,000
Housing Authority -
State and Federal Grants 042,334
Intergovernmental Revenues 941,635
Fines and Forfeitures 839,978
FNC Parking Lease 30,000
interest Income 39,545
Recreation Fees 1,767,442
Charges for Services 1,038,363
Franchise Fees 919,278
Danations/Contributions 14,145
Sale of Land & SurplusEquiopment -
Cemetary 64,824
Miscellaneous Income 777,257
TOTAL REVENUES 30,182,051
EXPENDITURES:
General Government:
Legislative:
Personal Services 162,888
Supplies 4,032
Other Services and Charges 12,314
Capital Outlay 259
Total . 179,493
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CITY OF OXFORD, MiSSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

TOTALS
2018
Judicial:
Personnel Services $ 434,667
Supplies 46,553
Other Services and Charges 95,666
Capital Outlay 166,723
Total 743,609
Executive;
Fersonnel Services 187,602
Supplies 8,676
Other Services and Charges 8,160
Capital Cutlay 5,980
Total 189,418
Department of Planning:
Personnel Services 395,154
Supplies 9,310
Other Services and Charges 40,187
Capital Qutlay . 11,624
Total 456,275
Elections:
Personnel Services -
Supplies 4,421
Other Services and Charges -
Total 4,421
Finance:
Personnel Services 335,043
Supplies 19,133
Other Services and Charges 58,401
Capital Outlay 10,270
Total 422 847
Human Resources:
Personnel Services 271,285
Supplies 44,665
Other Services and Charges 78,390
Capital Outlay -
Total 394,320
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPP]
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

TOTALS
2019
Law; ,
Personne! Services $ -
Supplies -
Other Services and Charges 326,031
Total 326,031
Building and Grounds:
Personnel Services 1,101,161
Supplies 274,903
Other Services and Charges 110,944
Capital Outlay 55,797
Total 1,542,805
Building and Code Enforcement:
Personnel Services 299,019
Supplies 8,314
Other Services and Charges 7,551
Capital Outlay _ -
Total 315,784
General Government:
Personnel Services 171,438
Supplies 10,576
Other Services and Charges 710,265
Capital Cutlay 218,835
Total 1,111,112
Community Promotions:
Other Services and Charges 82,113
Total 82,113
Total General Government 5,768,228
Public Safety:
Police Department:
Personnel Services 6,340,986
Supplies 603,036
Other Services and Charges 432,164
Capital Qutlay 180,329
Total 7,556,515
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CITY OF CXFORD, MiISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

TOTALS
2019
Parking Division:
Personnel Services $ 177,357
Supplies 56,289
Other Services and Charges 136,802
Capital Outlay 137,277
Total 507,725
Emergency Management:
Perscnnel Services 78,862
Supplies 16,457
Other Services and Charges 30,299
Capital Qutlay 50,730
Total 176,448
Fire Department:
Personnel Services 4 587 673
Supplies 226,025
Other Services and Charges 125,556
Capitat Outlay 1,821,965
Total 6,741,219
Total Public Safety 14,981,907
Public Works:
Highway and Street Maintenance:
Personnel Services £90,100
Supplies 466,102
Other Services and Charges 676,146
Capital Outlay 510,825
Total 2,242 973
Waste Disposal:
Personnel Services -
Supplies -
Other Services and Charges -
Capital Qutlay -
Total -
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

TOTALS
2019
City Garage Department:
Personnel Services $ 514,638
Supplies 400,832
Other Services and Charges 18,472
Capital Cuttay 23,444
Total 957,386
Alrport;
Other Services and Charges -
Total -
Weed & Grass Control: -
Personnel Services 333,566
Supplies 16,768
Other Services and Charges 33,505
Capital Qutlay 37,221
Total 421,080
Cemetary Maintenance:
Personnel Services 241,480
Supplies 4,315
Other Services and Charges _ 5178
Capital Outlay 20,357
Total 271,310
Family Crisis Services:
Other Services and Charges 30,250
Total 30,250
Humane Society:
Other Services and Charges 101,361
Capital Cutlay 16,650
Total 118,011
Lendon Bus:
Personnel Services 670
Supplies 2,608
Other Services and Charges 20,346
Total 23,624
Total Public Works 4,064,514
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

TOTALS
2019
Culture & Recreation:
Parks and Recreation;
Personnel Services 994,316
Supplies 71,391
Other Services and Charges 791,592
Capital Outlay 107,820
Total 1,865,119
Swimming Pools - Parks:
Personnel Services 46,754
Supplies 348,066
Other Services and Charges 22,492
Capital Qutlay 7,953
Total 425 285
Library;

Personne! Services -

Supplies -
Other Services and Charges 320,587

~ Capital Outlay -
Total 320,587

RSVP - Park/Recreation:

Personnel Services 173,005
Supplies 13,719
Other Services and Charges 76,474

Capital Outlay -
Total 263,198

FNC Park:

Personnel Services 716,836
Supplies 275,885
Other Services and Charges 302,365
Capital QGutlay 9,352
Total 1,304,438
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

TOTALS
2019
-Historic Homes:
Personnel Services $ 5,393
Supplies 51,358
Other Services and Charges 42,578
Capital Outlay -
Total 99,329
Total Culture and Recreation 4,377,936
Debt Service;
Principal Retirement 683,099
Interest and Fiscal Charges 26,070
Total Debt Service 709,169
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 29,901,754
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 280,297
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from Capital Leases -
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt 2,125,145
Transfers (to) from Other Funds {269,531)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 1,865,614
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over {(Under) Expenditures and Other
Fihancing Uses 2,145,911
FUND BALANCE;
October 1, Beginning, as previously stated 14,166,286
Prior Period Adjustment
October 1, Beginning, as restated 14,166,286
SEPTEMBER 30, Ending $ 16,312,197
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
Year Ended September 30, 2019

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Real & Personal $ 86690417 3% 8,510,027 % (59,390)
Panalties and Interest 258,000 258,861 861
Licenses and Permits 1,258,900 1,246,914 (11,986)
State of Mississippi:
Sales Tax 10,112,000 10,109,239 (2,761)
Municlpaf Aid 30,000 9,433 (20,567)
Fire Protection 111,000 108,561 (4,439)
Utility Tax - 18,592 18,592
ABC Licenses 191,000 191,475 475
Homestead Reimbursement 114,500 131,171 16,671
in Lieu of Taxes 336,000 262,520 (73,480)
Lafayette County; .
Pro Rate Tax 1,048,000 1,048,018 18
In Lieu - Other:
Utllity Department 965,000 965,000 -
State, Federal and Local Grants’ 1,020,245 862,391 (157.,854)
Intergovernmental Revenues 940,000 941,835 1,635
Fines and Forfeitures 854,200 839,976 (14,224)
Parking Meter Revenues 1,036,363 1,036,363 -
FNC Parking Lease 30,000 - 30,000 -
Interest Income: 21,800 39,545 17,745
Recreation Fees 1,714,175 1,767,442 53,267
Charges for Services - - -
Franchise Fees 902,000 902,601 601
Donations/Contributions 12,100 14,145 2,045
Sale of Land and Surplus Equipment - - -
Cemetary 57,000 64,824 7,824
Miscellaneous Income 899,322 777,257 (122,085)
TOTAL REVENUES $ 30,481,022 % 30,133,990 3% {(347,032)
EXPENDITURES:
General Government:

Legislative;

Personnel Setvices 3$ 182,658 § 162,888 $ 19,770

Supplies 4,240 4,032 208

Other Services and Charges 12,500 12,314 186

Capital Qutlay 260 259 1

Total 199,658 179,493 20,165
Judicial:

Personnel Services 540,019 434,667 105,352

Supplies 38,000 46,553 (8,553)

Other Services and Charges 42,600 95,666 (63,086)

Capital Qutlay 5,000 166,723 (161,723)

Total 525,619 743,609 {117,990)
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS

Year Ended September 30, 2019

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE)
Executive:
Perscnnel Servicas $ 172,952 $ 187,602 § 5,350
Supplies 7,000 8,676 {1,6786)
Other Services and Charges 11,500 6,160 5,340
Capital Qutlay 3,000 6,980 (3,980)
Total 194,452 189,418 5,034
Department of Planning:
Personnel Services 546,600 395,154 151,446
Supplies 21,700 9,310 12,380
Other Services and Charges 51,000 40,187 10,813
Capital Outlay 7,500 11,624 (4,124
Total 626,800 456,275 170,525
Elections:
Personnel Services - - -
Supplies 10,000 4,421 5579
Other Services and Charges - - -
Total ) 10,000 4,421 5,579
Finé.n-ce:
Persennel Services 369,830 335,043 34,787
Supplies 52,500 19,133 33,367
Cther Servicas and Charges 51,300 58,401 (7,101
Capital Qutlay 13,200 10,270 2,930
Total 486,830 422 847 63,983
Human Resources:
Personnel Services 292,193 271,265 20,928
Supplies 48,300 44 665 3,635
Other Services and Charges 79,640 78,390 1,250
Capitat Outlay - - -
Total 420,133 394,320 25,813
Law:
Personnel Services - - -
Supplies - - -
Other Services and Charges 401,000 326,031 74,969
Total 401,000 326,031 74,969
Building and Grounds:
Personnel Services 1,101,174 1,101,161 13
Supplies 382,260 274,903 107,357
Other Services and Charges 146,180 110,944 35,236
Capital Outlay 63,200 55,797 7,403
Total 1,692,814 1,542,805 150,009
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
Year Ended September 30, 2019

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
Building and Cede Enforcement:
Personnel Services $ 333,746 § 299919 § 33,827
Supplies 17,100 8,314 8,786
Other Services and Charges 10,200 7,551 2,649
Capital Qutlay 1,800 - 1,800
Total 362,846 316,784 47,062
General Government;
Personnel Services 546,020 171,436 374,584
Supplies 20,000 10,576 9,424
Other Services and Charges 1,484,052 710,265 773,787
Capital Qutlay 1,714,128 218,835 1,495,291
Total 3,764,198 1,111,112 2,653,086
Community Promotions:
Other Services and Charges 149,500 82,113 67,387
Total 149,500 82,113 67,387
Tetal General Government 8,933,850 5,768,228 3,185,822
Public Safety:
Police Department:
Parsonnel Services 6,746,653 6,340,986 405,667
Supplies 660,558 603,036 57,522
Other Services and Charges 652,544 432,164 220,380
Capital Outlay 280,718 180,329 110,389
Total 8,350,473 7,666,516 793,958
Parking Division:
Personnel Services 213,661 177,357 36,304
Supplies 80,700 56,289 24,411
Other Services and Charges 130,938 136,802 (5,864)
Capital Outlay 137,878 137,277 598
Total 563,174 507,725 55,449
Emergency Management:
Personnel Services 79,747 76,062 785
Supplies 27,000 16,457 10,543
Cther Services and Charges 49,600 30,299 19,301
Capital Outlay 64,000 50,730 13,270
Total 220,347 176,448 43,898
Fire Department;
Personnel Services 4,914,252 4,567 673 348,579
Supplies 242,000 226,025 15,975
Other Services and Charges 182,000 125,556 56,444
Capital Qutlay 1,851,000 1,821,965 29,035
?,189,252 6,741,219 448,033

Total
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
Year Ended September 30, 2019

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
Other Protection Department:
Other Services and Charges $ - 8 - % -
Total - - .
Total Public Safety 16,323,248 14,981,907 1,341,339
Public Works:
Highway and Street Maintenance:
Personnel Services . 713,206 580,100 123,196
Supplies 601,005 466,102 134,903
Other Services and Charges 1,099,900 676,146 423,754
Capital Outlay 410,000 510,625 (100,625)
Total 2,824,201 2,242.973 581,228
Waste Disposal:
Personnel Services - - -
Supplies - - -
Other Services and Charges - - -
Capital Qutlay - - -
Total - - -
City Garage Department: :
Parsonnel Services 618,218 514,838 103,580
Supplies 468,800 400,832 67,968
Other Services and Charges 25,500 18,472 7,028
Capital Qutlay 30,000 23,444 6,556
Total 1,142,518 057,386 185,132
Airport;
Other Services and Charges - - -
Total - - -
Weed & Grass Contral;
Personnel Services 376,433 333,566 42,867
Supplies 18,500 16,768 1,732
Other Services and Charges 40,000 33,505 6,495
Capital Outlay 40,000 37,221 2,779
Total 474,933 421,060 53,873
Cemetary Maintenance:
Personnel Services 242 375 241,460 915
Supplies 5,000 4,315 685
Other Services and Charges 9,000 5,178 3,822
Capital Outlay 25,000 20,357 4,643
Total 281,375 271,310 10,085
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
Year Ended September 30, 2019

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
Fami!y Crisis Services:
Other Services and Charges 3 33,000 §$ 30,250 §$ 2,750
Total 33,000 30,250 2,750
FHumane Society:
Other Services and Charges 135,000 101,361 33,639
Capital Qutiay 16,650 16,650 -
Total 151,650 118,011 33,639
London Bus:
Personnel Services 20,399 20,346 53
Supplies 2,600 2,508 92
Other Services and Charges 700 670 30
Total 23,699 23,524 176
Total Public Works 4,931,376 4,064,514 866,862
Culture & Recreation:
Parks and Recreation:
Personnel Services 1,209,449 994,316 215,133
Supplies 146,200 127,035 19,165
Other Services and Charges 891,360 735,048 155,412
Capital Outlay 106,000 107,820 (1,820
Total 2,353,008 1,965,119 387,800
Swimming Pools - Parks:
Personne! Services 54,902 46,754 8,148
Supplies 189,500 348,068 {158,566)
Other Services and Charges 25,000 22,492 2,508
Capital Qutlay - 7,953 {7,953)
Total 269,402 425,265 {155,863)
Library:
Personnel Services - - -
Supplles - - -
Other Services and Charges 321,000 320,587 413
Capital Outlay - - -
Tota! 321,000 320,687 413
RSVP - Park/Recreation:
Personnel Services 190,908 173,005 17,803
Supplies 14,208 13,719 489
Other Services and Charges 49,772 76,474 (26,702)
Capital Outlay 4,000 - 4,000
Total 258,888 263,198 {4,310
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
Year Ended September 30, 2019

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
FNC Park:
Personnel Services $ 717688 % 716,836 % 852
Supplies 565,950 275,885 290,085
Other Services and Charges 310,000 302,385 7,635
Capital Outlay 28,900 9,352 19,548
Total 1,622,538 1,304,438 318,100
Historic Homes:
Persannel Services 5,500 5,393 107
Supplies 54,500 51,358 3,142
Other Services and Charges 48,800 42,578 6,222
Capital Qutlay - - -
Total 108,800 99,329 9,471
Total Culture and Recreation 4,933,637 4,377,936 555,701
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 704,807 683,099 21,708
Interest and Fiscal Charges - 26,070 (26,070}
Total 704,807 709,169 (4,362)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 36,826,916 29,901,754 5,925,162
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expenditures (5,345,894) 232,238 5,578,130
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt 3,562,836 2,125,145 1,437,691
Transfers (to) from Cther Funds 355,612 {259,531) {615,043)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 3,018,348 1,865,614 822,648
=xcess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under) Expanditures
and Other Uses (1,427,646) 2,097,850 6,400,778
FUND BALANCE:
October 1, Beginning 14,166,286 14,166,286 -
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) September 30, $ 12,738,740 16,264,136 $ 6,400,778
Adjustments to GAAP Basis:
Accrued Revenue 48,061
FUND BALANCE {(GAAP) September 30,
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPP!

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
September 30, 2019

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES-

PROFPRIETARY FUND
WATER &
ELECTRIC SEWER ENVIRONMENTAL.
FUND FUND SERVICES TOTAL
ASSETS:
Current Asgsts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 6,363,083 § 15,854,004 § 1,223,126 $§ 23,440,303
Investments 10,474 3,231,780 - 3,242,254
Accounts Receivable, Net of Provision for Bad Debts 3,584,066 2,138,268 768,344 6,490,678
Due from Other Funds - - - -
Duse from Other Governments - - - -
Inventories 659,650 603,014 - 1,262,684
Prepaid Expenses 2,082 - - 2,082
Total Current Assets 10,619,355 21,827,156 1,991,470 34,437,981
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted 6,000 - - 5,000
Investments - Restricted - 1,722,767 - 1,722,767
Unamortized Debt Expensa - - - -
Investment in CSA 16,548 - - 16,548
Land 508,953 199,510 - 1,108,463
Plant, Buildings & Improvements 38,134,823 71,688,366 52,207 109,875,396
Machinery & Equipment 3,141,972 3,872,952 4,849,719 11,864,643
Accumulated Depreciation {12,872,842) (42,018,522) {1,912,594) (58,803,958)
Construction Work In Progress 1,610,197 10,424,801 - 12,035,098
Net Noncurrent Assets 30,944,651 45,889,874 2,989,332 79,823,957
TOTAL ASSETS 41,564,006 67,717,130 4,980,802 114,261,938
PBEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Qutfiows - Pensions 285,799 218,628 136,667 541,004
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESCURCES 5 285,799 % 218,628 § 136,667 3% 641,094
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPP|
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
September 30, 2019

WATER &
ELECTRIC SEWER ENVIRCNMENTAL
FUND FUND SERVICES TOTAL
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and
Accrued Expenseas $ 6,176,555 § 2797896 § 110,660 $ 9,085,111
Accrued Interest Payable - 287,117 6,400 283,517
Due to Other Funds - - - -
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt - 2,054,922 517,506 2,572,428
Customer Deposits 4123518 - - 4,123,518
Total Cusrent Liabilities 10,300,073 5,139,935 534,566 16,074,574
Nencurrent Liabilities:
Other Liabilities 30,815 - - 30,915
Compensated Absencas 106,312 122170 85,345 313,827
Net Pansion Liability 4,256,211 7,929,803 4,957,035 17,143,049
Bonds, Notes, and Leans Payable, net of current portion - 27,671,821 1,888,375 29,564,988
Total Noncurrent Ligbilities 4,393,438 35,723,694 5,935,755 47,052,787
TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,693,611 40,863,529 7,570,321 63,127,361
DEFERRED INFILLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Charge on Refunding Bands, net - 414,190 - 414,190
Deferred Inflows - Pensions 104,900 396,681 247,971 749,552
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS QF RESQURCES 104,900 810,871 247 971 1,163,742
NET POSITION:
Net Investmet In Capital Assets 30,923,103 14,440,664 578,451 45,942 218
Reserved for Unemployment Benefits 5,000 - - 5,000
Rasarved for Debt Service - 1,722,787 - 1,722,767
Unirestricted {3,875,709) 10,097,927 (3,279,274) 2,841,944
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 27051394 $ 26,261,358 % (2,700,823) $ 50,611,929




CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For The Year Ended September 30, 2019

WATER &
ELECTRIC SEWER ENVIRONMENTAL
FUND FUND SERVICES TOTALS

OPERATING REVENUE:

Charges For Services $ 23,478,535 § 10,742,600 $ 4,696,790 § 38,924,834

Other 287,457 - - 287 457
Total Operating Revenue 23,765,992 10,749,609 4,698,790 38,212,391
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Opsrations 20,182,964 6,933,972 4,124,243 31,241,179

Maintenance 657,234 175,781 796,181 1,628,196

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 1,093,733 3,148,148 367,734 4,609,615
Total Operating Expenses 21,833,931 10,257,901 5,288,158 37,479,890
Net Operating Income (Loss) 1,832,061 491,708 (581,368) 1,732,401
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES);

Interest Income 75,894 110,968 - 186,863

Galn (Less) on Disposal of Fixed Asset {148,056} (5,774) 3,038 (149,802}

Grant Incoms/ Capital Contributicns - - 52,775 52,775

Amoartization of Debt Expense (5,033) 29,410 - 24,377

Rent Revenue - 265,186 - 265,188

Miscellanecus Income (Expense) (10,953) 264,210 2,330 255,698

interest Expense (39,654) {681,414) (15,045) {740,113)
Total Non-Cperating [ncome (Loss) {127,802) {17,413) 40,007 {105,208)
Income Before Operating Transfers 1,704,259 474,295 (551,361) 1,627,193
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN (OUT):

Operating Transfers In (Out) {965,000) (2,454,826) (209,023) (3,628,849)
Change in Net Position \ 739,259 {1,880,631) {760,384) (2,001,656}

Total Net Pesition - Beginning, as previously stated 26,312,138 28,241,889 (1,940,439) 52,613,585

Prior Period Adjustment - - - -

Total Net Position - Beginning, as restated 28,312,135 28,241,889 (1,940,439) 52,613,585

Total Net Position - Ending $ 27,051,394 % 26,261,358 $ (2,700,823) % 50,611,929
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPRI
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY EUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

WATER &
ELECTRIC SEWER ENVIRONMENTAL TOTALS :
FUND FUND SERVICES
Cash Flows from Operating Activitles: i
Receipts from Customers $ 23,937,470 § 10,641,744 $ 4,584,883 § 39,074,097
Payments to Suppliers (19,957,140) 790,991 (1,267,530) (20,433,679) :
Payments to Employees (715,648) (2,061,546) (2,129,769) (5,876,861)
Payments for Cther Services and Charges - (1,742,094) (832) (1,743,8286)
Other Recelpts (Paymants) - - (228,146) (226,146) |
Met Cash Provided By {Used} In Operating Activities 3,254,784 6,628,195 910,606 106,793,585 5
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers Cut {965,000) {2,454 826) (209,023) (3,628,849)
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Nercapital Financing Activities {965,000) {2,454,826) (202,023} (3,828,849)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Freceads From Capital Debt - 12,400,000 1,450,884 13,850,881 !
Purchases of Capital Assets (2,318,988} {10,510,105) (1,565,884) (14,394,955) ;
Plant Removal Cost (359,389) - - (359,389) i
Maleriais Salvaged from Retlremants 14,611 - - 14,611
Principal Paid on Gapital Debt (425,000) {1,632,731) (240,000} (2,197,731)
Interest Pald on Capital Debt (41,956) (672,193) (21,945) {636,094) |
Other Receipts (Payments) - 264,210 2,339 206,649 i
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Capilal and Related ‘
Finanting Actiities (3,130,700} 49,181 {243,589) (3,325,108}
Cash Flows from investing Activities: ’
Purchase of investments (10,474) (104,262) - {114,736)
Proceeds Frem Sala of Investments 355,648 - . 365,848 !
Interest and Dividends 75,894 110,969 - 186,863 :
Cther Receipts (Payments) (10,953) 265,185 - 284,233 :
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Aclivities 410,315 271,883 52,775 734,283 ;
Nel Increase (Decroase) n Cash and Cash Equivalents (430,601) 4,494,443 510,769 4,574,611
Cash and Cash Equivalents--Beginning 6,798,684 11,359,681 712,367 18,870,882
Cash and Cash Equivalents--Ending $ 6368083 §  15854,094 § 1,223,126 $ 23,445,303

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) in Operating Activities: ;

Operating Income {Loss) $ 1,832,061 $ 491,708 % (691,388) 3% 1,732,401

Adjustments to Reconcile Cperating Income {Loss} to Net !
Cash Provided By (Used) In Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 1,003,733 3,148,148 367,734 4,609,615
Amaunis Paid to City - Tax Equivalents (965,000) - - (965,000) :
Pension Expense - Actuarially Determined 139,375 1,027,939 1,242,627 2,409,041 .
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Recelvable 33,543 (207,865) (101,907} (276,229) ;
{Increase) Decrease In Prepald ltems 210 . - 210 i
{Increase) Decrease In Deferred Charges (7,690) 172,736 - 165,046
(Increase) Dacrease in Inventory 169,268 B - 169,268
(Intrease) Decieasa In Compansated Absences 5,425 52,035 {34,223) 24,137
Increase (Decreass) in Accounts Payable (149,639) 1,942,694 27,743 1,820,798 :
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities 483 - - 483 !
Increase {Decrease) in Customer Deposits 137,935 - - 137,835

Total Adjustments 457,723 6,136,487 1,501,974 8,096,184

Net Cash Provided By (Usad) In Operaling Actlvities $ 2289784 % 6,628,195 $ 910,806 & 8,828,585

-78-




962°26¥'e ¢ - $ e85y  $ 00000F % 81266 s - $ solevs ¢ ZlZeset $ (0/8/88) 3 GeB'IGSL ¢ OVETSS ¢ ZONVHVE ONNA ONY SSILAIEVITIYLOL
ivlell’e (L86'266'2) Lge'3sy 000700} 212'66 - 9/9'90¢ ANAT {e¥eLLr) SE2155'L 0FEZEG {10133} IoNVIVE aNnd TYLoL
- - = - = B = = - - - pauSisseun
Iri'slr'e (/86'266'2) leg'esty 000°001 2LZ'66 - 9.9'908 LLL'8ES'S £ LLY) S68°LSS'L obe'zes pajolsey
{L10143Q) IONVIVE aNnd
695 GLEE 186'866°C - - - - 620'E¥Z - eLP'es - - S3LHAVO WICL
z " T B = - = - u - - SpUn4 Jayi) o1 ang
B¥S'SLE'E i86'866'C - - - - 680°CHZ - £Ly'eL - - alqefed sjunoooy
SILLTIGY
96226+ - LEZ'eGY 0G0'00) BLE'GE - TR ZLL'825'E [CYENT3) 568'L65 T oreees S1ISSV IVLOL
- - H - = — = = - - - SIUBLIWIBACD) Jay}() wol4 eng
- - - - - - - - - - - Spun JaUio told angg
- - - - - . - - - - - S(gGRAISRY BUIO
- - - - - - - - - - - JS2I81U} paruooy
- - - - - - - - - - - sjusunssAl
9ECTEFY - $ 1eZ'86F ¢ 000'00L % 81Z'65 g - $ gol'6¥s § Lil'sss’e ¢ (0i9°282) ¢ SeER'lSS'L & oOveEes 8 ysed
‘S13ssy
[21Ev A walold 123roud MoyIS3 LO3rodd au ZOVINOHS 2DIrQEd LI3rCHd EEIL =] MoEosa ONM4 ONOE8
spuog L Uil SONKTINg NOLLYLS SNCHNAOD NOSNI DG NOISNADLGE ALNLDY S.INSHEACHENI 0D WSS
STYICL Wi 5152 HLYCN DNFIASTH SNOWWOTD Q20 [af=leEria] INNSAY ASIS dO0T QHOIX0 MIN NOLEDISYIINI YLLOZ

6102 “og Jaquisideg
SANMS S1HIATOHd TYLIdYD
133HS ADNVIVE ONINIFINOD
I4ISSISSHA ‘QUOAX0 40 ALID

79



I¥'9i1e & (/26'866C) & LEC 8GY $ 000°00L $ 8LTE6 L - $ "9/d'one ¢ /L/'RESE (ePetly)  $ SBR'ESS T ¢ 0¥Eess  $  “0¢ Jogqwosdss - IONVIVE CINMA
S/6'¢L0'6 - 861101 0co'oal 0¥9'66 2€9°/¥T L6LPIS)L 5250982 £€9°//8'¢ 608'6.9 OFECES ‘} 4890300 - JONVTVE ANNS
(gzz'969's} (286'266'7) ze0'45¢ - {zZzy) (ec9'2v2) {515°492'L) ZaL'esL') (9/6'884'e) 980'z.8 - S8 U0
pue saumipuadxg (Jspun) sea0
sanuasay Jo (Aousiouen) ssaoKg
0599522 - - - - (828'/¥Z) 397119 85E'GEC L 62528 £EB'¥00'3 - {sasn} s32dNOS
SNIDONVYNIS ¥3HLO TVLIOL
0698572 - - - - (2£9°4+2) EERAY) 85E'CEE L 62S2E €E6FS0L - Spund Ja0 (0)) woy siasuel |
- - - - - - - - - - - SoUENSE| JUB(] JO SPaSVcig
1838} SEFDUNOS DNIDNVYNIL H3HLO
{828%599) (Zas'ee6’z) zeo'lsE - (Tew) - (ege'éig’l)  {eoariiy) [CEEEE) [R5 - salripuadxz (Gapupn) Jead
senuanay o (AeuspyaQ) sseoxs
£85°650'6 I26'866'C 69L1% - 3y - £86°2/3 | gaL* /1) B0P'SZeS /¥2728L - STUNLIANIIXA “Tvi0L
LY9'6E0°6 I86'966'2 69L°LY¥ - [#44 - £86'848'L EETRAA /8¥'602'¢ LPR'ZEL - Aepno jenden
L0y - - - - - - - S0 - - sefley) pue scopuag JRp0
692'L - - - - - - - BIE'L - - seyddng
spoefold epden
SIUNLIANTIXT
564201 - L0g2'e6E - - - - - ¥06°¢ - - SANNIATH WIOL
F06°C - = - - = - - ¥06'C - - =0
L02°86¢ - 10896 - - - - - - - - SUCKNgLEUO/sUCTEUa]
- - - - - - - - - - - sauEu|
- $ - - $ - $ - % - s - s - - $ - ¢ - 3 SWoU| eI
‘SINNIATY
-[5i74 toslong 123r0Nd AN0EIE3 133rodd O IOVINOHA 103r0ud L123rodd HILNZD MOHOST QNN GNGE
spuag JiL HYNY T ONIGING NOLLYLS SNOWWOD NOISNZIX3 NOIBNZLX2 ALALLDY SINIFNSACHLN QO WSLS
SIVLOL WrS 10z HIMON SNIDASTY SNOWNWOS ada [e-[05) 4] SONIAY H48IS dOST QROIKD NEN NOLLOZSES LN YLLOZ

6102 ‘02 Jeqwieidag papug Jeas e Jog

SCNT SLOATOHA TYLIdVYD
IINVIVE ANN NI STONVHO aNY ‘STHNLIANIIXT ‘SINNIAIY 40 INTWILVLS ININIHNOD
[ddISSISSIN ‘TUO4X0 30 ALID

-80-



0/9'E89 $ DIS'ST & zZeet $ 052t $ FOL'6L  § B0GGE ¢ £5C'681 & 668 $ e29es  § ZoL'Mii $ €30°08 $ TPoLD $ £EFZ 3 JONVIVE QNS ANY STLNEYTE WLOL
0117089 0/5'5¢ 286°E DSE'E POL'6L B0S°SL [T 669 REGES 1907111 £80°08 o) )] {1iD143a) IINY T NN TVLOL
[1T) = - = B N {19) paubissaun
1£2'089 ois'se ZEB'E 058’ YOL'SL 60S'SL £62'69L 668 ferdcaa 85000 £20°08 2r0'Le - papILIc)
{110143Q) ISNVIVE QNfid
005'2 - = - - - - GosT SFALMSVIT IVLOL
= = = = = - = - - - - - - sjqefed suUNcady
0057 - - - - - - - - - 005 spsoda Jo S5a0X3 U} panss| S}alD
SILTEVT
0928 0i5°52 TER'E 0sEe FOL'SL 605'GL £5E'68L 662 9z8°eS FETN £80°08 Zr0'Le EEP'E S1ISSY WIOL
896°VZ - - - €CE L LoF'E SPEY - 867 SIDT 992°¢ EEFE £EP'E JoU “IqenEIY SAXE| WAIBA DY
2047209 $ 0I8'SZ % 2Zes'e % 05Ee $ 1822 $ TOMEL & 800'SRL  $ 668 % vro'sy ¢ Ze0'siL $ 51040 & 605'IG $ - 3 uses
ES B
BL0Z §10Z3Nssl D810 ANSSI geL0Z 2SS ¥RBIOZ NSS! aLLezaNss] SOz anss! IGT IANSS (A LrAE g o] GHOZINES GO0Z NSS! Yii0Z 3ngsst ¥0OZ INTE]
SUNCZ JiL TNOg 09 QNOE 05 aNosE OB ONOE G2 OMNOE 09 anNoa ve cnogon ONC8 o aNoE O anNoa oo aNocd 02
STIOL wrd WO Ly fipfs-go ] [ A W% Waas no'is eSS W Ge0AE Wess WeLe es
: 6L0Z ‘0¢ Jagquisydes
SONN4 2DIAN3S 1930
. 1IIHS ITINYTVE DONINIENOD
IdJISSISSIN ‘THOJX0 40 ALID

o<
@



0/ 0E9 $ 0562 $ ¢e'E $ 0T $ ¥OLBE % B0%5L $ £5Eeel £ 668 t B829'€S 8 927111 $ £80°08 8 Zrote ¢ (9} § ‘ociequardag - SONVIVE ONfiY
AR - B - - - £59'901 =4 LSS Er6 05 £G8'ze 9058 g ‘1 420120 - IINYIVE aNn
LO'GLL oig'ce ZEB'E nse'e ¥oL'6L 80551 00L'ze 29 (8g.'2) BLE'ST 0LLE) BIET - S35 J20
pue sainppuadxg (Jspun} 38A0
SanuaAy Jo [Aouamus) sseoxg
BTz L - 0v9'BeL 00£'099 - - - - - 000017 - B - [szsn) sasunos
ONIDNVNIS ¥IHLO TVLOL
(S - e 0E'998 - - - - - Uoaoly - - - SpUN JSURQ (03) woy siggsuety
- - - - - - - - - - - - - Wed Jo JUUENSS] WOl SPas00l]
(SN} SFDUNOS DNIONYNE HIAHLO
668'080°1) 0.6'62 {802'cz1) (056'209} yOL'SL 805'GL 00Lce €9 {58.'2) {LgL'ese} 02£7) BI6'E - sampusdxy [epun) J8A0
senuassy 10 (Asusyag) sseox]
588°0IC 7 - 80.5zL 0G6 299 BOBLIT 685009 61918 SYEVEh 19205y 22V LTLYEE 1oF 26r - STYALIONIdXT TYLOL
SETTYE L - orere 00E128 BLL60L 6856 696'80T 00E6C 1E0EL 18109 1€9'29 GRS - JsRIBl| - SJUBLUAEd
000'51Z'e - 000'06 o00'ore 000004 0on'ose 00050,/ 000's6 o00'sse 000'0LL oo0°0JE 0007082 - fedisuud - sjuawiey
6ra'sL - 890"L 059°L 082’z oao'} 0se'z S¥o 52T ore’l 980 cos - sood
ISARNLIAGNIIXT
928°GFS'E 0/5'GE - - [AT4 830919 616868 8/55ch cer iy orG'8ee 1S6'LES 8/£7005 - SINNIASE TWIOL
[3T] - - - - - - - - - 2] - - wWoou) JsaEIL}
- - - - - - - - - - - - - s9NUSASY |ejualuuancbia)
SLF'She'e § 0is'6z 5 - $ - § Ti0eT $ 200'919 3 6l6's68 $ B485TL § 98F'LeF ¢ ovg'sge § vBELEE $ BIE'005 - $ saxe) Apedoid RisusD
‘SIANIAATY
11174 BLIT ANSS IBLOZ 3NSSI 910 211581 YELOZ 3NSSI BLLDE 3NSSI SLOZ INSSI FLOZINES ZLOZ 3NSS oLoZ INSSH BOUC 3NSSH YLLOZ 3NSSI FOOZ S8=1
SONQSE 21, aNog 0D GNOE 09 anNos 09 aNog 092 CINOE O ONOE ¥ ANOE O QNOS 09 UNOE 0D CNCE 05 aNes 09
STVAOL Wrs Ws'Ls nSEEs WLzs NS4S Woes naLs Wses WEBs WEET WS'2$ wes

610Z ‘0¢ Jatuedag papug des ) 2y) tod
SANNd 3DIAMES 930
FONV1IvE aNAd NI SFDONYHD ANV ‘STUNLIGNTIXT ‘SINNIATY S0 ININELVES ONINIENOD
IddISSISSIN "QUOLIX0 40 ALID

-82-



CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS FOR MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS
September 30, 2019

BOND BOND

NAME POSITION COMPANY AMOUNT EXPIRATION
Robyn Tannehill Mayor FCCI Insurance Group 100,000 71172020
Rick Addy Alderman Ward | Travelers 100,000 71112020
Mark Huelse Alderman Ward || Travelers 100,000 7/1/2020
Janice Antonow Alderman Ward Il FCCI Insurance Group 100,000 7/1/2020
Kesha Howell-Atkinson  Alderman Ward |V Travelers 100,000 71212020
Preston Edward Taylor Alderman Ward V FCCI Insurance Group 100,000 71212020
Jason Bailey Alderman Ward V| FCCI insurance Group 100,000 711/2020
John Morgan Alderman At Large FCCI Insurance Group 100,000 7/6/2020
Ashley Atkinson City Clerk FCCI Insurance Group 50,000  8/20/2020
l.esia Chandler Deputy Clerk FCCI Insurance Group 50,000  8/20/2020
Joey East Police Chief FCCI Insurance Group 50,000 71142020
Matt Davis Dir. Parking Enforcement  Travelers 25,000 3/1/2021
Daphanie Vaughn Deputy Clerk Travelers 50,000  5/M12/2020
Donna C Buchanan Admin. Asst.-Court Travelers 25,000 11672020
Jessica Fort Tolleson Deputy Clerk Travelers 50,000 1/6/2020
Caitlan Cole Carpenter Deputy Clerk Travelers 50,000  11/6/2020
Steven Clay Brownlee  Asst. Park Dir.-FNC Pk. Travelers 50,000  1/25/2020
Brad Freeman Park Dir.-FNC Park Travelers 50,000  1/25/2020
Alex Jay Fauver Narcotics Officer Travelers 50,000 4/9/2020
Rodney G. Waller Narcotics Officer Travelers 50,000 1/8/2020
Lloyd Caleb East Narcotics Officer Travelers 50,000 10/20/2020
Aric A. Stratton Narcotics Officer Travelers 50,000 11272020
Evelyn G. Willingham  Administrative Assistant  Travelers 50,000 2/1/2020
Shelby L. Hernandez ~ Administrative Assistant  Travelers 50,000 1/4/2020
Valerie R. A. Boothe Administrative Assistant  Travelers 50,000 1/4/2020
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CITY OF OXFQRD, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

INTEREST BALANCE DEBT DEBT BALANCE CURRENT
RATE 9-30-18 ISSUED RETIRED 9-30-19 MATURITIES
LONG-TERM DEBT:
Governmental Activities
General Obllgation Bonds:
General Obligaficn-Saries 2010 (Refunding) 2-3% $ 2185000 § - § 710,000 $  1,475000 $ 726,000
Ganeral Obilgation-Series 2009 3-3.75% 1,825,000 - 270,000 1,655,000 286,000
General Obligation-Series 2012 1.625-2,25% 3,545,000 u 365,000 3,190,600 365,000
-G.0. Note Series 2014-Ragions 1.686% 102,818 - 102,518 - "
G.0. Note Series 2044-Hancock 1.45% 370,000 370,000 - -
General Obllgation-Series 2015 (Refunding) 2-25% 5,445,000 - 705,000 4,740,000 540,000
G.0. Note Series 2018-Trustmark 219% 495,000 - 160,000 335,000 165,000
General Obligation-Serles 2017A 3.00% 7,230,000 - 280,000 8,950,000 290,000
Geneara! Obligation-Serfes 20178 3.00% - 4.00% 7,500,000 - 270,000 7,230,000 280,000
Genaral Qbligation-Series 2018A 25% - 3.5% 2,700,000 - 100,000 2,500,000 105,000
General Obligation-Series 20188 3.0% - 4.0% 9,850,000 - 340,000 9,610,000 355,000
General Obligation-Series 2018C 3.5% - 4,0% 1,050,000 " 96,000 960,000 90,000
G.C. Note Series 2019 2.41% - 1,900,000 J - 1,800,000 380,000
Total General Obligation Bonds and Notes 42,397,618 1,900,000 3,752,518 40,545,000 3,580,000
Special Assessment Bonds:
Speclal Assessment Bong-Serles 2014 2.25-2.626% 1,245,000 - 95,000 1,160,000 100,000
Total Special Assessment Bonds 1,245,000 - 95,000 1,150,000 100,000
Notss & Capital Leases Payable;
CAP Loan - State of Mississippl 2.00% 533,366 - 50,581 482,785 §1,353
Capital Lease-Regions Bank 2.21% - 225,145 - 225,145 43,063
Total Notes & Capita! Leases Payvable 533,366 225,145 50,581 707,930 84,416
Total Governmental Activities 44,176,884 2,125,145 3,898,089 42,402,930 3,774,416
Business-Type Activitles
Revenue Bonds;
2007 Solld Waste Revenue Bond 2.00% 1,200,000 - 240,000 960,000 240,000
2008 Water & Sewer Revenue Bond 3.625-4.5% 2,135,000 . 170,000 1,965,000 180,000
2011 Water & Sewer Revenue Band 3-4.3% 6,410,000 - 360,000 6,050,000 420,000
2012 Waler & Sewer Revanue Bond 1-2.625% 1,665,000 - 225,000 1,340,000 230,000
2014 Water & Sewer Revanue Bond {Refunding) 1.05-5% 3,350,000 - 340,000 3,010,000 350,000
2019 Water & Sewer Revenue Bond 3.0-4.0% - 12,400,000 - 12,400,000 425,000
Electric Department
2011 Electric System Revenus 2.25-3,125% 425,000 - 425,000 - u
Total Revenue Bongs 16,085,000 12,400,000 1,760,000 25,725 000 1,645,000
Notes & Capita! lL.eases Payable:
State Revolving Fund-Water & Sewer 2.76% 5,399,274 - 437,731 4,861,543 449,922
Capital Lease-Regions Bank 2.21% - 1,450,681 - 1,450,881 277,506
Total Notes Payable £§,309,274 1,450,881 437,731 8,412,424 727,428
Total Business-Type Activities 20,484,274 13,850,881 2,197,731 32,137,424 2,572,428
Total Long-Term Debt $ 64,660,158 & 15,976,026 $ 6,095,830 $ 74,540,354 $ 6,346,844
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CITY OF OXFORD

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Federal Grantor/ Grantor Federal
Pass Through Grantor/ Agency Id CFDA Foderal
Program Title Number Numbser  Expenditures
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
U. 8. Department of Transportation
Passed through Mississippl Department of Public Safety
Highway Safety Cluster
State and Community Highway Safety PT-2019-PT-22-51 20600 § 11,305
National Pricrity Safety Programs METR-2019-MD-22-51 20.616 338,692
Total Highway Safety Cluster 349,998
Alcohol Open Container Requiraments 164AL-2018-8T-22-52 20.607 87,076
Total Passed Through Mississippi Department of Public Safety 437,074
Passed through Mississippl Department of Transpertation
* Formula Grants for Rural Areas MS 2017-008-00 20.509 1,954,012
Total Passed Through Mississippl Department of Transportation 1,954,012
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 5 2,391,088
Corporatlon for National and Community Service
Passed through Mississippi Commisslon for Volunteer Service
Retired and Senior Volunteer Program 18SR3MS001 94.002 § 48,808
Total Gorporation for Natlenal and Community Service 48,809
U. 8. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through Mississipp! Emergency Management Agency
Homeland Security Grant Program 18HS288 87.087 8,714
Homeland Security Grant Program 18HS286T 87.067 10,000
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 1816-0018 97.039 _ BBBTT0
Total U. 8. Department of Homeland Sacurity $ 587,484
TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES $___3.027,379

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the Gity of Oxford, Mississippi
and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented In accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance).' Therefors, some amounts

in this schedule may diffar from amounts presented in, or used In the preparation of, the basic financial statemenits.

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting, Such expenditures are
resognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, whergin certain types of expenditures

are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

The City has not eiected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

* - Mafor Program
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Oxford, Mississippi
Oxford, Mississippi 38655

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Oxford, Mississippi as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Oxford, Mississippi's basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Oxford,
Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Oxford,
Mississippi’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Oxford, Mississippi's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and
significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as 1, 2 and 3 to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompany schedule of findings and questioned
costs as 4 to be a significant deficiency.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Oxford, Mississippi's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other mattars
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as 1 and 4. We noted certain other matters that
we reported to management of the City of Oxford, Mississippi in a separate letter dated October 28, 2020.

City of Oxford, Mississippi's Response to Findings

The City of Oxford, Mississippi’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City of Oxford, Mississippi's response was
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Govemnment Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal controf and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Frants, Frnks | Wilomon \%Hméwk 0.A.

FRANKS, FRANKS, WILEMON & HAGOOD, P.A.
Tupelo, Mississippi
October 28, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
Oxford, Mississippi

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Oxford, Mississippi's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the City of Oxford, Mississippi's major federal programs for the year
ended September 30, 2019. City of Oxford, Mississippi's major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Oxford,
Mississippi’'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Oxford, Mississippi’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of
Oxford, Mississippi's compliance.-

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City of Oxford, Mississippi, complied, in all material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2019.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City of Oxford, Mississippi, is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City of Oxford,
Mississippi's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Oxford, Mississippi's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal contro! over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Frangs, Foaks | Wilomow \&Huéwk 08

FRANKS, FRANKS, WILEMON & HAGOOD, P.A.
Tupelo, Mississippi
Cctober 28, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Oxford, Mississippi
Oxford, Mississippi 38655

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Oxford, Mississippi, as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2019 and have issued our report dated October 28, 2020. We have
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards.

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State
Auditor, we have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and
regulations. However, providing an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations was not
an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of those procedures and our audit of the general purpose financial statements disclosed
the following material instances of noncompliance with state laws and regulations. Our findings and
recommendations and your responses are included in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs as findings 1, 2 and 5.

The Office of the State Auditor or a public accounting firm will review, on a subsequent year's audit
engagement, the findings in this report to ensure that corrective action has been taken.

This report is intended for the information of the City’s management and the Office of the State

Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

Transs, Fruaks | Wil *W&wk 0.A.

FRANKS, FRANKS, WILEMON & HAGOOD, P.A.
Tupelo, Mississippi
October 28, 2020
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
September 30, 2019

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: Qualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identified? X Yes No
Significant deficiency identified
not considered to be a material weakness? X Yes None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements
hoted? X _ Yes No
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major programs:
Material weakness identified? Yes _ X No
Significant deficiency identified
' not considered to be a material weakness? Yes__X _ None reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.518(a)? Yes__ X _No

Identification of major program:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.509 U.S. Dept. of Transportation- Formula Grants for Rural Areas

Dollar threshold used to distinguish

between Type A and Type B programs: $.750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ___Yes_ X _No
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

September 30, 2019

SECTION 2 - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS:

FINDING NO, 1
Criteria;

Cause of Condition:

Recommendation:

Response:

The City is to maintain adequate subsidiary records substantiating the
existence, completeness, and valuation of fixed assets.

The City does not have a complete and accurate listing of all fixed assets.
The City has not ensured that all fixed assets are properly tagged and
accounted for in compliance with state laws at the time of purchase. Also,
we noted one instance for which compliance with state purchase laws was
not documented related to a fixed asset purchase. The City's depreciation
schedule has several assets without a description of the assets. The City
disposed of several assets by approval in the minutes, however, the assets
could not be removed from the depreciation schedule due to lack of
adequate descriptions.

The City should conduct a year-end inventory of its fixed assets and ensure
that all assets owned by the City are properly tagged and accounted for in
accordance with state requirements and that all assets are tagged at the
time of purchase. The City should ensure adequate support and
documentation is maintained on all assets purchased. The City should
ensure that all assets declared surplus are identified on the depreciation
schedule and properly removed.

The City will establish an inventory policy that wili require a complete annual
inventory of all fixed assets. All assets will be properly tagged and
numbered, and relevant information will be gathered on all assets and
included on the master fixed asset listing. The City is currently working with
all departments to conduct an annual inventory and accurately tag and
account for all fixed assets.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NO. 2

Criteria:

Cause of Condition:

Recommendation:

Response:

FINDING NO. 3

Criteria:

Cause of Condition:

Recommendation:

Response:

September 30, 2019

The City is to maintain adequate internal controls to ensure accurate
processing of transactions for the fair presentation of its financial records.

The City did not ensure all liabilities of the City were properly recorded on
the general ledger of the City in the appropriate funds. The City accounts for
all meter deposits of the City on the general ledger of the Electric
Department. The meter deposits for the Water and Sewer fund cannot be
identified and segregated from the deposits of the Electric Fund. Therefore,
the general ledger and financial statements of the Water and Sewer Fund do
not accurately report the liabilities associated with this fund.

The City should implement adequate internal controls to ensure proper
presentation of liabilities of each fund of the City. The meter deposit listing
should be segregated between amounts held for deposit by Electric Fund
and Water and Sewer Fund.

The City will take steps to develop a system to adequately segregate the
meter deposits between the two funds and ensure the liability is recorded in
the proper fund of the City.

The City is to maintain adequate internal controls to ensure accurate
processing of transactions for the fair presentation of its financial records.

The City’s inventory system for fracking or valuing inventory for the Water
and Sewer fund lacked effective methods for ensuring the proper valuation
of inventory items at year end. Inventory counts were performed on all items
on hand at year end. We noted several inventory items in which inventory
pricing or valuation was not adequately documented.

The City should continue to develop an inventory system for the Water and
Sewer fund. Inventory count procedures have improved but the City should
continue to stress the impertance of an accurate inventory count. The City
should develop a system to adequately price and value all inventory items.

The City has made significant improvements in accounting for the inventory
of the Water and Sewer fund. The City will continue to improve and develop
a system to adequately track and value all inventory of the water and sewer
fund.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NO. 4

Criteria;

Cause of Condition:

Recommendation:

Response:

September 30, 2019

The City is required, by state statutes, to prepare a budget for all required
governmental funds of the City and to monitor and modify the budget as
necessary to ensure all expenses are within the budgeted amounts.

The City had budget overages in some expense categories for the year
ended September 30, 2019,

The City should ensure that all expenses are within the final amended
budget amounts. The City Clerk should generate monthly budget to actual
revenue and expense reports that should be used to ensure budgets are
amended before expenses are disbursed in excess of budgeted amounts.

The City will take steps necessary to provide the Board with accurate
revenue and expense budget to actual comparisons on a monthly basis for
all required accounts. The City will take steps necessary to ensure that
budgets are amended prior to budget overages occurring.

Findings 1 and 4 are noncomphiance findings.
Findings 1, 2 and 3 are material weaknesses.
Finding 4 is a significant deficiency.
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CITY OF OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
September 30, 2019

SECTION 3 - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS:

NONE
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